
   Central Virginia Planning District 
   Commission 

      12th Fl, 828 Main St. 
 Lynchburg, VA  24504 

Large Conference Room 
  January 16, 2020 

 5:00 p.m. 

Agenda 

1. Welcome | Moment of Silence | Introduction of New Members ..................... Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

2. Selection of a Vice Chair .................................................................................... Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

Bryan Moody of Appomattox County has served as our Vice Chair, but was not re-elected to the Board 
of Supervisors. Staff recommends that we ask Mayor Paul Harvey of Appomattox Town if he would 
serve the balance of the unexpired term as Vice Chair of the PDC.  

3. Approval of November 21, 2019 Meeting Minutes ...........................................Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 
(Attached) 

4. Financial Update ........................................................................................................... Rosalie Majerus 
a) Audit Report from Matt McLearen of Robinson, Farmer, Cox of Charlottesville, VA (Attached)
b) Year to date financial update (Attached)

5. Strategic Directions: Discussion on next steps to promote advanced manufacturing sector
 ............................................................................................................................................. Gary Christie 
(Attached) 

a) Three options for discussion
b) Background material on manufacturing in our region
c) Jobs EQ statistics on Central Virginia Manufacturing and Economic Overview of the region
d) Manufacturing Competitive Indexes 2019, Virginia compared to other states

6. Other business from staff or Commission members ....................................... Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

7. Next Meeting: March 19, 2020 .......................................................................... Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

8. Adjourn
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Central Virginia Planning 

 District Commission 
828 Main Street, 12th Floor 

Lynchburg, VA 24504 
 

       November 21, 2019 
 5:00 pm 

 
 
 

Minutes 
 

 
Members Present:  
 Kenneth Campbell, Amherst County Board of Supervisors  
 Waverly Coggsdale, Altavista Town Manager  
 Dean Rodgers, Amherst County Administrator 
 Frank Rogers, Campbell County Administrator 
 Bonnie Svrcek, City of Lynchburg 
 Russell Thurston, Brookneal Town Manager 

Mayor Dwayne Tuggle, Town of Amherst, Chair 
Mayor Treney Tweedy, City of Lynchburg 
Charlie A. Watts, II, Campbell County Board of Supervisors 

 
Members Absent:  
 Susan Adams, Appomattox County Administrator 
 Sara Carter, Amherst Town Manager  
 Beverley Dalton, Altavista Town Council 
 Mayor Paul Harvey, Town of Appomattox 
 Robert  Hiss, Bedford County Administrator  
 Bruce Johannessen, Bedford Town Council 
 Megan Lucas, Lynchburg Regional Economic Alliance 
 Bryan Moody, Appomattox County Board of Supervisors, Vice-Chair  
 Mark Peake, Senate of Virginia 
 Gary Shanaberger, Appomattox Town Manager 
 John Sharp, Bedford County Board of Supervisors     

Bart Warner, Bedford Town Manager 
 

Others Present: 
Ben Bowman, Virginia Career Works 

 Gary Christie, Central Virginia Planning District Commission, Executive Director 
Susan Cook, Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Kelly Hitchcock, Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Rosalie Majerus, Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
 

  
  
1. Welcome and Moment of Silence 
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Dwayne Tuggle, Chair, welcomed the Commission and began the meeting with a moment of 
silence.  
 

2. Thanks to Kenneth Campbell of Amherst County and Bryan Moody of Appomattox 
County for their service on the Commission. Recognition to PDC retirees Emmie Boley 
and Susan Cook for 11 years and 16 years of service to the PDC 

 
Chairman Tuggle expressed thanks to Kenneth Campbell from Amherst and Bryan Moody 
from Appomattox for their service on the PDC. He also recognized Emmie Boley and Susan 
Cook for their years of service, as both are retiring effective December 31, 2019.  
 
A motion was made by Bonnie Svrcek, seconded by Waverly Coggsdale, thanking each one 
for their service.  The motion was unanimously approved.  
 

3. Approval of the September 19, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
 

Upon a motion by Frank Rogers, seconded by Kenneth Campbell, the minutes of the 
September 19, 2019 meeting passed unanimously as presented. 
 

4. Financial Update 
 

a) Year to Date Financial Update 
Rosalie Majerus reported that operating expenses are tracking as budgeted. 
$150,000 has been paid out to the Alliance for the Central Virginia Training 
Center. The impact to the PDC’s financials reflects a negative fund balance of 
$155,000 in the use of surplus funds balance line item. The impact will be that the 
fund balance will drop $200,000 this year, as a negative $50,000 was budgeted for 
a position that has not yet been filled, and the negative $150,000 added.      

 
b) Setting the dues rate for 2020-2021 

Ms. Majerus reported that dues will remain the same for the coming year, which 
is $.575 for cities and counties per capita, and a flat fee of $l,045 for towns. 
 
The motion was made by Frank Rogers, and seconded by Waverly Coggsdale, to 
approve the dues rate. The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
5. Review of Report from Zelos on Strategic Direction Meeting 

 
Gary Christie thanked everyone who participated at the meeting in October at the Alliance 
building.  
 
Gary reported on comments/responses that came back from the survey identifying focus 
areas that are needed to move the region forward: 

1) Workforce Development  
2) Economic Development 
3) Quality of Life and Tourism 

Gary suggested that the next steps would be to identify one or two of these areas to tackle. 
Frank Rogers suggested advanced manufacturing be the main area of focus and have staff put 
together an action plan that defines advanced manufacturing as our top regional priority, put 
together a work plan as to how to incorporate successful workforce development and 
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economic development strategies to enable this, as well as incorporating quality of life and 
tourism.  
 
Frank Rogers made a motion, seconded by Dean Rodgers, for staff to put together a plan that 
they can bring back to the PDC. The motion was unanimously approved. 
    

6.  Update on Hazard Mitigation Planning 
 

Kelly Hitchcock advised that there is a public survey available, running through December 
13, 2019 and a press release has been sent to all local newspapers. The draft Hazard 
Mitigation Plan is anticipated to be brought to the Boards in a February time frame and 
submitted to FEMA in March. With the draft HMP submitted to FEMA localities may apply 
for pre-mitigation activities included in the Plan. FEMA will look at the draft plan and make 
recommendations and changes. The final HMP will be presented to area localities for 
adoption consideration during the summer.  A locality must have an adopted HMP for 
FEMA mitigation grant award.  
 
 

7. Personnel Reports 
 

a) Executive Director Goals for 2020 - The commission reviewed the outline for the 
Executive Director’s evaluation and goals, as written by the feedback committee. 

 
Frank Rogers made a motion, seconded by Russell Thurston, to approve the goals for 
the Executive Director for the coming year as presented. The motion was 
unanimously approved. 
 
Following the Commission policy, adopted on March 19, 2015, with the acceptance 
of the Executive Director’s performance evaluation and adoption of Goals for 2020, 
the 2% performance based salary increase which was awarded to qualifying 
employees on July 1 will be awarded to Executive Director Gary Christie effective 
January 1, 2020. 
 

b) PDC Salary Study Synopsis – Gary Christie explained that the salary study compared 
what is paid to CVPDC employees to what other localities pay their employees. The 
Planning and Development Director’s position was significantly below what was paid 
in other regions. He suggested increasing the grade and provide a 9.5% pay increase 
effective January 1. He also suggested a 1.5% increase to four other positions: Senior 
Planner, Deputy Director for Finance, Transportation Planning Director and Regional 
Planner.   

 
A motion was made by Russell Thurston, seconded by Treney Tweedy, to adopt the 
salary study recommendations.  The motion was unanimously approved.  

 
8.   Legislative Recommendations for 2020 General Assembly 
 

 At the meeting of November 21, 2019, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
unanimously agreed to support the following legislative priorities: 
 
1. Equal Taxing Authority – proposed by Dean Rodgers, Amherst County 
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The Central Virginia Planning District Commission supports granting counties equal taxing 
authority to that enjoyed by cities and towns to enact local excise taxes without referendum, 
such as the authority to adopt a local meals tax without referendum and to levy and collect a 
tobacco tax. 
 
2. Central Virginia Training Center – proposed by Dean Rodgers, Amherst County 
 
The Commission supports efforts of a re-development plan for the Training Center to 
determine the highest and best use of the property and requests allocated funds from the 
Commonwealth to begin clearing the site for remediation. 
 
3. State Funding for Broadband Infrastructure – proposed by Frank Rogers, Campbell 

County 
 
The Commission believes that broadband service in unserved rural areas is a critical priority 
and encourages support for additional resources for communities to speed connection of 
unserved areas of the Commonwealth 
 
A motion was made by Bonnie Svrcek and seconded by Treney Tweedy to adopt the 
legislative recommendations. The motion was unanimously approved.  
 

9. Other Business from Staff and Members 
 

1) Invite new 23rd   District Delegate to become a member of the PDC  
Gary Christie explained that we have had a vacancy on the board from the House of 
Delegates for the past year, and he suggested inviting Wendell Walker, the newly 
elected 23rd District Delegate, to fill this seat for a two year term.  
 
This was approved by consensus of the Commission 
 

2) Reminder on the use of Designees/Alternates 
Gary asked members to send him the name of their alternate if they chose to have 
one. 
 

3) Orientation with new PDC Members in January/February 
Gary asked Commission members if they have a new member coming on to the 
Commission to let him know, as he will be conducting orientations in January and 
February with new members.  
 

10. Meeting Schedule for 2020 
 

Frank Rogers suggested that in accordance with the performance objective the Executive 
Directors put together a draft action plan promoting advanced manufacturing, and in April 
have a dinner meeting with a keynote speaker to address their plan.   

 
The meeting schedule in the packet was approved: 
January 16, MPO & PDC  
March 19, PDC, dinner meeting with speaker, Amherst location 
April 16, MPO & PDC 
May 21, PDC (tentative, if needed) 
July 16, MPO 7 PDC 
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July 29-31, VAPDC Conference in Staunton 
August 20, MPO 7 PDC 
September 17, MPO & PDC (tentative if needed) 
October 15, MPO & PDC 
November 19, PDC 
  
Adjourn - There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 

   



 

 

 
 

Communication with Those Charged with Governance 

To the Board of Directors 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission for the year ended June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing 
of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 18, 2019. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Central Virginia Planning District Commission are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements. As described in Note 16 to the financial statements, County of Campbell, Virginia 
changed accounting policies by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) 
No. 88 Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements and by early 
implementing GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the Commission’s financial statements was:  

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives of capital assets is based on historical experience 
and industry standards. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate 
of depreciable lives of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants



 

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements 
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or 
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management  

 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations  

 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 18, 2019. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the Commission’s financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Commission’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a  
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis and the schedules related to 
pension and OPEB funding, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the RSI.  
 
We were engaged to report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled 
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves.  



 

 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Directors and management of 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

 

Charlottesville, Virginia 
November 18, 2019 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 

To the Board of Directors  
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Lynchburg, Virginia 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Central Virginia 
Planning District Commission, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and 
Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
 
 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of Central Virginia Planning District Commission, 
as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Change in Accounting Principle  

As descried in Note 15 to the financial statements, in 2019, the Commission adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 88 Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and 
Direct Placements and early implemented GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 
Before the End of a Construction Period.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedules related to pension and OPEB funding on pages 4-7 and 45-53 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.     

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.   
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18, 
2019, on our consideration of Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Charlottesville, Virginia 
November 18, 2019
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

To the Board of Directors 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Lynchburg, Virginia 

As management of the Central Virginia Planning District Commission, (the “Commission”), we offer readers 
of our financial statements this narrative and overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the financial 
statements section of this report. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s basic financial 
statements.  The Commission’s annual financial report consists of three basic financial statements: a 
Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement 
of Cash Flows. For ease of presentation, all statements are in a condensed format. This report also contains 
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

The statement of net position presents information on the Commission's assets, deferred outflows, deferred 
inflows and liabilities.  Equity of the Commission is reported as net position.  Net position is the difference 
between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net 
investment in capital assets represents capital assets, reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any 
outstanding debt, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position represents restricted 
assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how the 
Commission's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the 
cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused vacation leave). 

The statement of cash flows indicates the net increase or decrease of cash resources for the Commission 
during the year and the activities that produced the increase or decrease. The statement concludes with a 
reconciliation tying the beginning cash balance and results for the year to the ending balance. 

Notes to financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.    The notes to the financial statements can 
be found on pages 11 through 44 of this report. 

Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, certain required 
supplementary information concerning the Commission's funding of its obligation to provide Virginia 
Retirement System Benefits and other post-employment benefits to its employees is located immediately 
following the notes to financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Commission exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $8,730,883 (net position).  Of this 
amount $2,652,060 (unrestricted) may be used to meet the Commission’s ongoing obligations to 
customers and creditors. 

The Commission’s total net position increased by $255,927. 
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Financial Highlights:  (Continued) 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a Commission’s financial position.  
In the case of the Commission, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources by $8,730,883 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

2019 2018

Current and other assets $ 3,197,373 $ 2,952,008
Capital assets 13,815,823 14,643,225

Total assets $ 17,013,196 $ 17,595,233

Deferred outflows of resources $ 52,567      $ 54,140      

Current liabilities $ 1,177,849 $ 1,090,357
Long-term liabilities 7,045,382 7,908,112

Total liabilities $ 8,223,231 $ 8,998,469

Deferred inflows of resources $ 111,649    $ 175,948    

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets $ 6,078,823 $ 6,068,225
Unrestricted 2,652,060 2,406,731

Total net position $ 8,730,883 $ 8,474,956

Net Position

The table below is a summary of the changes in net position. 

2019 2018
Revenues:

Operating revenues $ 3,497,070 $ 3,363,882
Participating government operating contributions (Dues) 154,774     154,668     
Nonoperating revenue 1,130,613  1,120,739

Total revenues $ 4,782,457  $ 4,639,289

Expenses:
Operating expenses $ 4,270,096 $ 3,435,535
Interest expense 256,434     281,276     
Loss on disposal of property and equipment -               74,369       

Total expenses $ 4,526,530 $ 3,791,180

Change in net position $ 255,927 $ 848,109     
Net position - July 1 8,474,956  7,626,847

Net position - June 30 $ 8,730,883  $ 8,474,956

Change in Net Position

Total revenues increased by $143,168 while total expenses increased $735,350 from fiscal year 2018 levels.
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Capital Asset Administration 

The Commission’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2019 amounts to $13,815,823 (net of 
accumulated depreciation).  Investment in capital assets increased 9.46% during the year.  Below is a 
comparison of the items that makeup capital assets as of June 30, 2019 with that of June 30, 2018. 

2019 2018

Leasehold Improvements $ 1,176          $ 2,938          
Furniture and equipment 19,415        24,283        
Regional Radio 13,620,904  13,915,833
Land 174,328       700,171       

Total Capital Assets $ 13,815,823  $ 14,643,225

Capital Assets

Review of Operations – FY 19

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission has served the local governments surrounding Lynchburg 
since 1969 with planning, grant writing and project management services.   

Staffing Services 

The Planning District Commission continues to provide staffing services to important regional organizations: 

Central Virginia Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
Central Virginia Radio Communications Board 
Region 2000 Services Authority 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Board and Workforce Council 
Ride Solutions 

These organizations provide valuable services to the community and the Planning District Commission 
framework allows for more cost effective, uniform, transparent, and responsive staffing delivery services. 

Radio Board  

The Central Virginia Radio Communications Board continues to provide a public safety grade communications 
network for Lynchburg, Amherst and Bedford.  Other organizations such as Liberty University, the Central 
Virginia Community College, the Region 2000 Services Authority, the Blue Ridge Regional Jail and the 
Greater Lynchburg Transit Company also use this communications system. 

This interoperable and redundant radio communications system provides valuable services in the event of a 
local or regional public safety event. 

Regional Economic Development Planning 

Planning District Commission staff continued work on implementation of the Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategic Plan in coordination with the Lynchburg Regional Business Alliance.  The Commission 
places a high priority on the continued development and implementation of the regional economic 
development strategic plan. 
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Workforce Development 

The Central Virginia Workforce Development staff continue to shape the region’s workforce development by 
coordinating with service providers.  Beginning July 1, 2019, the PDC began direct operation of the 
Workforce Board’s Youth Program.  Workforce staff, using funds from GO Virginia, held a “World of 
Opportunity Career Expo” involving over 3,700 local students and 50 businesses to educate students about 
careers and career pathways. 

Transportation  

The Central Virginia MPO and the Planning District Commission continued to provide transportation planning 
services in the region.  We provided technical assistance to five (5) successful Smart Scale Grants in the 
region.  Staff also completed a bicycle and pedestrian plan for the Town of Bedford. 

Transit Services 

The Planning District Commission and Central Virginia MPO continue to serve the Greater Lynchburg Transit 
Company with planning and support services.  Work continued refining bus stop locations, ADA accessibility 
to sidewalks and signage. 

Housing and Utilities

We continue to assist the Town of Appomattox and Amherst County with housing rehabilitation projects 
improving neighborhoods and sub-standard housing.  We continue to work with Appomattox County repairing 
homes and infrastructure in the areas of the County impacted by a tornado in 2016.  We also developed a 
business plan for the Town of Pamplin to meet requirements for funding to do needed improvements to the 
Town’s water tank and chemical feed system. 

Central Virginia Training Center 

The Planning District Commission approved funding to match local money and grants for the creation of a re-
development plan for the Central Virginia Training Center. 

Ride Solutions

We continue to work with the business community and carpoolers providing information about alternative 
transportation, including bicycle and walking opportunities. 

Solid Waste Disposal

The Region 2000 Services Authority continues to handle about 200,000 tons of solid waste annually in an 
environmentally safe and cost-effective way.  Discussions continue with the Campbell County Board of 
Supervisors on waste disposal options for post 2029, when the current permitted area is filled. 

Hazard Mitigation Planning

Using local funds and a $100,000 grant from the Virginia Department of Emergency Services, the PDC 
contracted with Virginia Tech to update the region’s Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

Return on Investment

The Planning District Commission generated $18.44 in outside revenues for each $1 in local government dues 
in FY 19.

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to the Executive Director, 828 Main Street, 12th Floor, Lynchburg, VA  24504. 



Basic Financial Statements 
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 1

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AT JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

At June 30,
2019 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)  $ 2,107,815  $ 2,077,133      
  Accounts/grants receivable/Due from other governments (Note 3) 517,137 367,727         
  Prepaid expenses 59,588 41,813           

     Total current assets  $ 2,684,540      $ 2,486,673      

Long-term assets:
  Net pension asset (Note 5)  $ 512,833  $ 465,335         
  Capital assets, net (Note 4) 13,815,823 14,643,225    

     Total long-term assets  $ 14,328,656     $ 15,108,560    

       Total assets  $ 17,013,196     $ 17,595,233    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Pension related items  $ 41,894  $ 49,714           
  OPEB related items 10,673 4,426             
          Total deferred outflows of resources  $ 52,567  $ 54,140

LIABILITIES 
  Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable and other liabilities  $ 220,943  $ 154,116         
    Accrued interest payable 39,201 43,447           
    Funds held for others 4,665 4,665             
    Compensated absences (Note 6) 48,040 50,129           
    Revenue bonds, current portion (Note 15) 865,000 838,000         

          Total current liabilities  $ 1,177,849      $ 1,090,357      

  Long-term liabilities:
    Revenue bonds, less current portion (Note 15)  $ 6,872,000  $ 7,737,000      
    Net OPEB liabilities 173,382 171,112         

          Total long-term liabilities  $ 7,045,382      $ 7,908,112      

          Total liabilities  $ 8,223,231  $ 8,998,469

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Pension related items  $ 104,353  $ 160,238         
  OPEB related items 7,296 15,710           

          Total deferred inflows of resources  $ 111,649  $ 175,948

NET POSITION
  Net investment in capital assets  $ 6,078,823     $ 6,068,225      
  Unrestricted 2,652,060     2,406,731      

         Total net position  $ 8,730,883      $ 8,474,956      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 2

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018

Operating Revenues
 Grants
  Commonwealth of Virginia
   Department of Housing and Community Development  $ 99,056           $ 122,171         
   Virginia Employment Commission 24,395          -                   
   Department of Health 2,500            -                   
   Department of Transportation 74,676          60,210           

  Federal
   Department of Transportation - Highway Planning and Construction 245,943         218,876         
   Department of Transportation - Planning 97,408          88,872           
   Environmental Protection Agency 
     Chesapeake Bay Program 50,000          -                   
   Workforce Investment Act
     Adult Programs 432,893         461,846
     Youth Programs 611,170         549,391         
     Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 296,841         370,676         
     Dislocated Worker National Reserve Technical Assistance and Training 24,667          -                   
   Commerce Department Economic Development -                   12,207           

 Other Revenue
   Regional Radio Board 1,302,456      1,284,945      
   Dues and matching funds - participating localities 154,774 154,668
   Grant management and other fees 221,461         186,796         
   Miscellaneous 13,604 7,892

          Total operating revenues  $ 3,651,844       $ 3,518,550      

Operating Expenses
 Administrative
   Salaries $ 70,576           $ 69,218           
   Fringe benefits 38,286          38,468           
   Other unallocated overhead 150,516         136,798         
 Program
   Allocated administrative salaries 694,521 647,688
   Allocated fringe benefits 373,795 359,847
   Direct program 2,942,402 2,183,516      

          Total operating expenses  $ 4,270,096       $ 3,435,535      

Operating income (loss)  $ (618,252)        $ 83,015           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
 Interest Income  $ 25,460  $ 14,728           
 Interest expense (256,434) (281,276)        
 Loss on disposal of property and equipment -                   (74,369)         
 Member jurisdiction payments 1,105,153      1,106,011      

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)  $ 874,179          $ 765,094         

 Change in net position  $ 255,927          $ 848,109         

         Net position - beginning at July 1, as restated 8,474,956 7,626,847      

         Net position - ending at June 30  $ 8,730,883       $ 8,474,956      

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 3

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
  Receipts from granting agencies and participating localities $ 3,502,434     $ 3,569,770     
  Payments to suppliers (2,165,473)    (1,495,905)    
  Payments to and on behalf of employees (1,287,221)    (1,232,044)    

          Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 49,740          $ 841,821        

Cash Flow From Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Purchase of capital assets $ (50,991)        $ (1,172,023)    
  Member jurisdiction payments 1,105,153     1,106,011     
  Principal payments on bond (838,000)       (813,000)       
  Interest paid on bond (260,680)       (285,395)       

         Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities   $ (44,518)        $ (1,164,407)    

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Interest income $ 25,460          $ 14,728          

          Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 30,682          $ (307,858)       

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (including $0
  and ($27), respectively reported in restricted accounts) 2,077,133     2,384,991     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (including $0 and 
  $0 respectively reported in restricted accounts) $ 2,107,815     $ 2,077,133     

Reconciliation of Operating income (loss) to Net
 Cash provided by (used for) operating activities
  Operating income (loss) $ (618,252)       $ 83,015          

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
  by (used for) operating activities:

    Depreciation 878,393        902,928        
    Loss on disposal of property and equipment -                  (74,369)        
    Accounts and grants receivable (149,410)       51,220          
    Prepaid expenses (17,775)        5,890           
    Accounts payable 66,827          (29,581)        
    Funds held for others -                  (375)             
    Compensated absences (2,089)          (7,582)          
    Net OPEB liabilities 2,270           (18,821)        
    Deferred outflows - net pension asset related 7,820           24,548          
    Deferred outflows - net OPEB group life related (6,247)          (4,426)          
    Deferred inflows - pension related (55,885)        92,390          
    Deferred inflows - OPEB related (8,414)          15,710          
    Net pension asset (47,498)        (198,726)       

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 49,740          $ 841,821        

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Financial Reporting entity: 

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission (the “Commission”) is a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia.  It was established pursuant to the Virginia Area Development Act and by joint 
resolution of the governing bodies of its constituent jurisdictions.  Those jurisdictions comprising the 
Commission’s regional area are the counties of Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, and Campbell; the City of 
Lynchburg; and the towns of Altavista, Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, and Brookneal.  The purpose of the 
Commission is to promote the orderly and efficient development of the physical, social, and economic 
elements of the region by means of regional planning and fostering regional cooperation among the several 
region governments. 

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: 

The Commission’s financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. 

The Commission distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the Commission’s 
principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Commission are grants received from 
state and federal agencies and operating contributions from member jurisdictions.  Operating expenses 
include program and administrative expenses.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly 
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Valuation of receivables: 

Receivables are stated at face amount with no allowance for doubtful accounts because probable 
uncollectible accounts are immaterial. 

Capital assets: 

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated cost.  Donated property is recorded at acquisition value 
prevailing at date of donation.  Capital assets are defined as land, buildings and other improvements, 
furnishings and equipment with an initial individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life of 
more than one year.  Depreciation for capital assets has been provided over the following estimated useful 
lives using the straight-line method: 

Buildings and other improvements 15-39 years
Furnishings and leasehold improvements 3-7 years
Equipment 5 years
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

Compensated absences: 

Each year employees accumulate a specified number of days of leave with pay based on years of service.  
The liability for compensated absences reflects unused leave as of June 30, including applicable employer 
taxes.

Funds Held for Others: 

Funds held for others include funds that have been collected, but are not for the Commission’s use.  They 
include WIA Train-It funds. 

Use of Estimates: 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing its financial statements.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications: 

Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statement have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year’s presentation. 

Net Position: 

Net position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, reduced by 
accumulated depreciation and by any outstanding debt, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position 
represents restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

Net Position Flow Assumption:   

Sometimes the Commission will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  In order to calculate the amounts to report as 
restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the financial statements, a flow assumption must 
be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  It is the Commission’s policy 
to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied. 
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NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (CONTINUED) 

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources: 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  The Commission only has one item that qualifies for reporting 
in this category.  It is comprised of certain items related to the measurement of the net pension asset and 
net OPEB liability or contributions to the pension and OPEB plan(s) made during the current and subsequent 
to the net pension asset and net OPEB liability measurement date.  For more detailed information on this 
item, reference the related notes.  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission has one type of item that qualifies for 
reporting in this category.  Certain items related to the measurement of the net pension asset and net OPEB 
liabilities are reported as deferred inflows of resources.  For more detailed information on this item, 
reference the related notes.  

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Commission’s Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the Commission’s net fiduciary position 
have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other Postemployment Benefits - Group Life Insurance 

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program provides coverage to state 
employees, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions. The GLI Program was established 
pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under 
which benefit terms are established or may be amended. The GLI Program is a defined benefit plan that 
provides a basic group life insurance benefit for employees of participating employers. For purposes of 
measuring the net GLI Program OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the GLI OPEB, and GLI OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the VRS GLI Program OPEB and the additions to/deductions from the VRS GLI OPEB’s net fiduciary position 
have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value.
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NOTE 2—DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: 

Deposits 

Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized in 
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the 
Code of Virginia.  Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the 
amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board.  
Financial Institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that 
choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits.  Accordingly, 
all deposits are considered fully collateralized. 

Investments

Statutes authorize the Commission to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, 
obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the 
African Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate notes, banker’s 
acceptances, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 

The Commission does not have a formal investment policy. 

Credit Risk of Debt Securities 

The Commission’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2019 were rated by Standard & Poor’s, and or an 
equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below using the Standard & Poor’s 
rating scale. 

Fair Quality
Ratings
AAAm

Local Government Investment Pool $ 766,374
VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool 250,714

Total $ 1,017,088

Commission's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Fair Value Measurements: Fair value of the Virginia Investment Pool is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The Commission has measured fair value of the above investments at the net asset value
(NAV).
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NOTE 2—DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:  (CONTINUED) 

Interest Rate Risk 

Fair Less Than
Value 1 Year

Local Government Investment Pool $ 766,374         $ 766,374         
VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool 250,714         250,714         

$ 1,017,088      $ 1,017,088      

Investment
Maturities (in years)

External Investment Pools 

The value of the positions in the external investment pools (Local Government Investment Pool is the same 
as the value of the pool shares.  As LGIP is not SEC registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the 
Virginia State Treasury.  LGIP is an amortized cost basis portfolio. There are no withdrawal limitations or 
restrictions imposed on participants. 

NOTE 3—ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE: 

Accounts and grants receivable are as follows: 

2019 2018

Virginia Department of Transportation $ 133,557     $ 78,469      
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation 21,868       17,084      
VCCS for Workforce Investment Opportunity Act 139,757     144,400
Department of Commerce -               12,207      
Town of Amherst -               1,132        
Amherst County 480           373           
Roanoke Valley Regional Commission 15,886       14,455      
Radio Board 188           9,235        
Region 2000 Partners 122,107     26,544      
Bedford County 7,500        5,000        
Appomattox Town -               1,132        
Appomattox County -               10,349      
Others 75,794       47,347      

$ 517,137 $ 367,727
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NOTE 4—CAPITAL ASSETS: 

Capital asset activity was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

2019

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 174,328 $ -              $ -                 $ 174,328
  Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 174,328 $ -              $ -                 $ 174,328

Other capital assets:
Leasehold improvements $ 19,660 $ -              $ -                 $ 19,660
Regional radio 15,753,489 44,669 -                 15,798,158
Furniture and equipment 69,790 6,322 11,135 64,977
  Subtotal other capital assets $ 15,842,939 $ 50,991 $ 11,135 $ 15,882,795
Accumulated depreciation
  Leasehold improvements $ 16,722 $ 1,762 $ -                 $ 18,484
  Regional radio 1,311,813 865,441 -                 2,177,254
  Furniture and equipment 45,507 11,190 11,135 45,562
    Subtotal accumulated depreciation $ 1,374,042 $ 878,393 $ 11,135 $ 2,241,300
        Other capital assets, net $ 14,468,897 $ (827,402) $ -                 $ 13,641,495

        Total capital assets, net $ 14,643,225 $ (827,402) $ -                 $ 13,815,823

2018

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 74,328 $ 100,000 $ -                 $ 174,328
Construction in progress 13,330,942 1,205,776 14,536,718  -              
  Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 13,405,270 $ 1,305,776 $ 14,536,718 $ 174,328

Other capital assets:
Leasehold improvements $ 19,660 $ -              $ -                 $ 19,660
Regional radio 1,374,078 14,474,438 95,027 15,753,489
Furniture and equipment 66,894 2,896 -                 69,790
  Subtotal other capital assets $ 1,460,632 $ 14,477,334 $ 95,027 $ 15,842,939
Accumulated depreciation
  Leasehold improvements $ 14,960 $ 1,762 $ -                 $ 16,722
  Regional radio 439,279 893,192 20,658 1,311,813
  Furniture and equipment 37,533 7,974 -                 45,507
    Subtotal accumulated depreciation $ 491,772 $ 902,928 $ 20,658 $ 1,374,042
        Other capital assets, net $ 968,860 $ 13,574,406 $ 74,369 $ 14,468,897
         
        Total capital assets, net $ 14,374,130 $ 14,880,182 $ 14,611,087 $ 14,643,225
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  

Plan Description  

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Commission are automatically covered by VRS 
Retirement Plan upon employment. This is an agent multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia 
Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. However, one other entity whose financial information is not included in this report, Region 2000 
Services Authority, participates in the VRS plan and reports their proportionate information on the basis of a 
cost-sharing plan. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for 
which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, 
based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be 
purchased includes prior public service, active military service, certain periods of leave, and previously 
refunded service.  

Benefit Structures 

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees – Plan 1, Plan 2 and 
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria, as detailed below. 

a. Employees hired before July 1, 2010, vested as of January 1, 2013, and have not taken a refund, are 
covered under Plan 1, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty employees are eligible for an 
unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least 5 years of creditable service or age 50 
with at least 30 years of creditable service. Non-hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced 
benefit as early as age 55 with at least 5 years of creditable service or age 50 with at least 10 years of 
creditable service.  

b. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, or their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were 
not vested as of January 1, 2013 are covered under Plan 2, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty 
employees are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age 
with at least 5 years of creditable service or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. Non-
hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of 
creditable service.  

c. Non-hazardous duty employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 are covered by the Hybrid Plan 
combining the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Plan 1 and Plan 2 
members also had the option of opting into this plan during the election window held January 1 – April 
30, 2014 with an effective date of July 1, 2014. Employees covered by this plan are eligible for an 
unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of 
creditable service, or when the sum of their age and service equal 90. Employees may retire with a 
reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least 5 years of creditable service. For the defined 
contribution component, members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, 
subject to restrictions.  
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Benefit Structures:  (Continued) 

Average Final Compensation and Service Retirement Multiplier 

The VRS defined benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of 
the employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the employee’s total creditable service. Under 
Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 36 consecutive months of highest 
compensation and the multiplier is 1.7% for non-hazardous duty employees, 1.85% for sheriffs and regional 
jail superintendents, and 1.7% or 1.85% for hazardous duty employees as elected by the employer. Under 
Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive months of highest 
compensation and the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for non-hazardous duty employees, 1.85% for sheriffs 
and regional jail superintendents, and 1.7% or 1.85% for hazardous duty employees as elected by the 
employer. Under the Hybrid Plan, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 
consecutive months of highest compensation and the multiplier is 1.00%. For members who opted into the 
Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to 
calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in those plans. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement and Death and Disability Benefits 

Retirees with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of creditable service are 
eligible for an annual COLA beginning July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement date. Retirees 
with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of creditable service are eligible for an annual COLA 
beginning on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement eligibility date. Under Plan 
1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%. Under Plan 2 and the Hybrid Plan, the COLA cannot exceed 3.00%. The 
VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia. 

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the 
Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their 
retirement. Prior to July 1, 2012, all or part of the 5.00% member contribution may have been assumed by 
the employer. Beginning July 1, 2012 new employees were required to pay the 5% member contribution. In 
addition, for existing employees, employers were required to begin making the employee pay the 5.00% 
member contribution. This could be phased in over a period of up to 5 years and the employer is required to 
provide a salary increase equal to the amount of the increase in the employee-paid member contribution.

The Commission’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 
4.71% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Contributions:  (Continued) 

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
Contributions to the pension plan from the Commission were $41,894 and $49,714 for the years ended June 
30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively.  

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Commission reported an asset of $512,833 and $465,335 respectively, for its 
proportionate share of the net pension asset.  The Commission’s net pension asset was measured as of June 
30, 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial 
valuation performed as of June 30, 2018, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017.  The 
Commission’s proportionate share of the same was calculated using creditable compensation as of June 30, 
2019 and 2018 as a basis for allocation. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Commission’s proportion was 48.14% 
and 48.14% respectively. 

Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees 

The total pension liability for General Employees in the Commission’s Retirement Plan was based on an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2017. 

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases, including inflation 3.5% – 5.35%

Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment
expenses, including inflation*

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were 
found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an 
assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0%. However, since 
the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a 
projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of 
return on investments was assumed to be 7.0% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.  
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees:  (Continued)

Mortality rates:  

Largest 10 – Non-Hazardous Duty: 20% of deaths are assumed to be service related  
Pre-Retirement:  

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

Post-Retirement:  
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90. 

Post-Disablement:  
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% 
of rates; females 125% of rates. 

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related  
Pre-Retirement:  

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

Post-Retirement:  
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90. 

Post-Disablement:  
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% 
of rates; females 125% of rates. 
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Actuarial Assumptions – General Employees:  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows: 

Largest 10 – Non-Hazardous Duty:  

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final 
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year 
age and service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates Lowered rates  
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 20%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:   

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates
Lowered rates at older ages and changed final 
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year 
age and service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates Lowered rates  
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 15%
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Actuarial Assumptions – Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits 

The total pension liability for Public Safety employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits in the Central Virginia 
Planning District Commission’s Retirement Plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, 
using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017. 

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases, including inflation 3.5% – 4.75%

Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment
expenses, including inflation*

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were 
found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an 
assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0%. However, since 
the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a 
projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of 
return on investments was assumed to be 7.0% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities. 

Mortality rates:  

Largest 10 – Hazardous Duty: 70% of deaths are assumed to be service related  
Pre-Retirement:  

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.  

Post-Retirement:  
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year, 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90; females 
set forward 3 years. 

Post-Disablement:  
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years; unisex 
using 100% male. 

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Hazardous Duty: 45% of deaths are assumed to be service related  
Pre-Retirement:  

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year. 

Post-Retirement:  
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year, 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90; females 
set forward 3 years. 
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions – Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty benefits (Continued) 

Mortality rates:  (Continued) 

Post-Disablement:  
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years; 
unisex using 100% male. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 201  valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016.  Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows: 

Largest 10 – Hazardous Duty: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience
Disability Rates Increased rates
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 60% to 70%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Hazardous Duty: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Increased age 50 rates, and lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age 

and service through 9 years of service
Disability Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience  
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Decreased rate from 60% to 45%
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Weighted
Arithmetic Average
Long-term Long-term

Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return

Public Equity 40.00% 4.54% 1.82%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.69% 0.10%
Credit Strategies 15.00% 3.96% 0.59%
Real Assets 15.00% 5.76% 0.86%
Private Equity 15.00% 9.53% 1.43%

Total 100.00% 4.80%

Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.30%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.30%. However, one-year returns do not take into 
account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the 
system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The 
results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 
6.83%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. 
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS 
Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates 
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of 
Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for 
state and teacher employer contributions; the Commission was also provided with an opportunity to use an 
alternative employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the alternate rate was the 
employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 90% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate 
from the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations, whichever was greater.  From July 1, 2018 on, participating 
employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore the long-term 
expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.  

Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount 
rate of 7.00%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point 
higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

Central Virginia Planning District Commission
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (347,312)   $ (512,833)   $ (648,934)

Rate

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Commission recognized pension expense of ($24,501). Since there 
was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension expense was 
related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer 
contributions and the proportionate share of employer contributions. 
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NOTE 5—PENSION PLAN:  (CONTINUED)  

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions:  (Continued)

At June 30, 2019, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ -                             $ 70,279                  

Change in assumptions -                             16,689                  

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments -                             17,385                  

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 41,894                    -                           

Total $ 41,894                    $ 104,353                

$41,894 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Commission’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension 
Liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future 
reporting periods as follows: 

Year ended June 30

2020 $ (36,315)
2021 (41,003)
2022 (25,805)
2023 (1,229)

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 
2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2018 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from 
the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2018-annual-report-pdf, or by writing to the 
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500. 
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NOTE 6—COMPENSATED ABSENCES: 

Following is a summary of changes in compensated absences: 

2019 2018

Balance, July 1 $ 50,129             $ 57,711             
   Increase (decrease) (2,089)             (7,582)             
Balance, June 30 $ 48,040             $ 50,129             

NOTE 7—OPERATING LEASE: 

In May 2016 the Commission entered into a non-binding three-year lease agreement for office space.  The 
Commission entered into an agreement with the Central Virginia Workforce Investment Board to share this 
office space under a sublease arrangement.  Net rental expense was approximately $94,339 and $98,396 for 
2019 and 2018, respectively.   

The Commission also has arrangements for lease of towers for the Regional Radio Board.  Lease payments 
totaled $96,318 and $95,712 for June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

NOTE 8—RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission joined together 
with other local governments in the Commonwealth to form the Virginia Association of Counties Group Self-
Insurance Risk Pool, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 
insurance program for member governments.  The Commission pays an annual premium to the pool for its 
workers compensation coverage, property and liability insurance.  The Agreement for Formation of the 
association provides that the association will be self-sustaining through member premiums.  Settled claims 
have not exceeded pool coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.  

NOTE 9—REGION 2000 SERVICES AUTHORITY: 

In June 2008, the Commission entered into an agreement with the Region 2000 Services Authority to provide 
management and operations services for the Services Authority.  The Commission is responsible for all of the 
financial operations and day to day operation of the landfills owned by the Authority.  The Authority shall 
pay the Commission for the actual cost of the employees at the Commission who provide administrative 
support for the Authority’s operations plus an administrative overhead rate. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS: 

Plan Description 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 5, the Commission administers a single-employer 
defined benefit healthcare plan. The plan provides postemployment health care benefits to all eligible 
permanent employees who meet the requirements under the Commission’s pension plans. The plan does not 
issue a publicly available financial report.   

Benefits Provided 

Participants in Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s OPEB plan must meet the eligibility 
requirements for retirement of the Virginia Retirement System to be eligible for benefits upon retirement. 
Participants must also retire directly from active service and meet one of the following criteria to be 
eligible:

Participants Hired by the Commission before July 1, 2006: Attain the age of 50 with at least 10 
years of consecutive service with the Commission.  

Participants Hired by the Commission on or after July 1, 2006, but before April 17, 2009: 
Attain the age of 50 with at least 20 years of consecutive service with the Commission.  

Participants Hired by the Commission on or after April 17, 2009: Not eligible to continue 
medical coverage into retirement.  

Plan Membership 

At June 30, 2019 (measurement date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms (includes 
Region 2000 Services Authority and Central Virginia Planning District Commission employees): 

Total active employees with coverage 15
Total retirees with coverage 1

Total 16

Contributions

The Commission does not pre-fund benefits; therefore, no assets are accumulated in a trust fund.  The 
current funding policy is to pay benefits directly from general assets on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The funding 
requirements are established and may be amended by the Commission.  The amount paid by the Commission 
for OPEB as the benefits came due during the year ended June 30, 2019 was $19,242.

Total OPEB Liability 

The Commission’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Health Insurance:  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation
2.50% per year as of June 30, 2019; 2.50% per year as of June 30, 2018

Salary Increases Graded scale

Discount Rate 3.50% as of June 30, 2019; 3.87% as of June 30, 2018

Mortality Rates 

The mortality rates for active and healthy retirees was calculated using the RP-2014 Total Dataset Mortality 
Table fully generational using scale BB to 2020. The mortality rates for disabled retirees was calculated 
using the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2020. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate is based on the yield or index rate for 20 year tax exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds within an average rating of AA/Aa or higher as of the respective measurement dates.  This rate was 
3.87% as of June 30, 2018 and 3.50% as of June 30, 2019.  

Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

2019 2018

Balances at Beginning of Year $ 112,382   115,798
Changes for the year:

Service cost 7,127      7,185      
Interest 4,256      4,076      
Changes in assumptions 1,464      (1,499)
Benefit payments (19,242)    (13,178)

Net changes (6,395)     (3,416)

Balances at End of Year $ 105,987   112,382

Total OPEB Liability
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Health Insurance:  (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following amounts present the total OPEB liability of the Commission, as well as what the total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.50%) or 
one percentage point higher (3.50%) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(2.50%)  Rate (3.50%) (4.50%)

$ 115,322               $ 105,987               $ 96,913                 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Commission, as well as what the total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase 
in Trend Rate Trend Rate in Trend Rate

$ 90,023                 $ 105,987               $ 124,666               

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Commission recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $11,418. At 
June 30, 2019, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resouces of Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 1,198                    $ 1,037                    
Total $ 1,198                    $ 1,037                    
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Health Insurance:  (Continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources:  (Continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in 
OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows: 

Year Ended June 30

2020 $ 35                
2021 35                
2022 35                
2023 35                
2024 21                

Thereafter -               

Additional disclosures on changes in net OPEB liability, related ratios, and employer contributions can be 
found in the required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.  

Group Life Insurance 

Plan Description  

The Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of 
Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be 
amended. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and employees of 
participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Program upon employment. 
This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System), 
along with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.  

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as 
well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Program. For members who elect the 
optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers 
deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a 
separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the GLI Program OPEB. 

The specific information for GLI OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is described below: 

Eligible Employees 

The GLI Program was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political 
subdivisions that elect the program. Basic GLI coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for 
employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated 
retirement member contributions and accrued interest. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Benefit Amounts 

The GLI Program is a defined benefit plan with several components. The natural death benefit is equal to 
the employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. The 
accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit. In addition to basic natural and accidental 
death benefits, the program provides additional benefits provided under specific circumstances that include 
the following: accidental dismemberment benefit, safety belt benefit, repatriation benefit, felonious 
assault benefit, and accelerated death benefit option. The benefit amounts are subject to a reduction 
factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The 
benefit amount reduces by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its 
original value. For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, the minimum benefit 
payable was set at $8,000 by statute. This amount is increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-
living adjustment and was increased to $8,279 effective July 1, 2018. 

Contributions

The contribution requirements for the GLI Program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of 
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school 
divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Program was 1.31% of covered 
employee compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 
split. The employee component was 0.79% (1.31% x 60%) and the employer component was 0.52% (1.31% x 
40%). Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution; however, the employer must pay 
all of the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the 
year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.52% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an 
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The actuarially determined 
rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits payable 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the 
GLI Program from the entity were $4,661 and $4,768 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, 
respectively.

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to the GLI Program OPEB

At June 30, 2019, the entity reported a liability of $67,396 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB 
Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total GLI OPEB liability used 
to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s 
actuarially determined employer contributions to the GLI Program for the year ended June 30, 2018 relative 
to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 
30, 2018, the participating employer’s proportion was .00927% as compared to .00809% at June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of $482. Since 
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense 
was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to the GLI Program OPEB:  (Continued)

At June 30, 2019, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the GLI OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 3,370                     $ 964                      

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on GLI OPEB program investments -                         2,407                   

Change in assumptions -                         2,888                   

Changes in proportion 1,444                     -                      

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 4,661                     -                      

Total $ 9,475                     $ 6,259                   

$4,661 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the employer’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB 
Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in 
future reporting periods as follows: 

Year Ended June 30

2020 $ (963)                       
2021 (963)                       
2022 (963)                       
2023 (482)                       
2024 963                        

Thereafter 963                        
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions

The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the Entry Age 
Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018.  The assumptions include 
several employer groups as noted below.  Mortality rates included herein are for relevant employer 
groups.  Information for other groups can be referenced in the VRS CAFR. 

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases, including inflation:
General state employees 3.5% – 5.35%
Teachers 3.5%-5.95%
SPORS employees 3.5%-4.75%
VaLORS employees 3.5%-4.75%
JRS employees 4.5%
Locality - General employees 3.5%-5.35%
Locality - Hazardous Duty employees 3.5%-4.75%

Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were 
found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an 
assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0%. However, since 
the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a 
projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of 
return on investments was assumed to be 7.0% to simplify preparation of OPEB liabilities. 

Mortality Rates – Teachers 

Pre-Retirement: 
RP-2014 White Collar Employee Rates to age 80, White Collar Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and 
older projected with scale BB to 2020. 

 Post-Retirement: 
RP-2014 White Collar Employee Rates to age 49, White Collar Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and 
older projected with scale BB to 2020; males 1% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90; females 
set back 3 years with 1.5% increase compounded from ages 65 to 70 and 2.0% increase compounded 
from ages 75 to 90. 

 Post-Disablement: 
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; 115% of rates for males and 
females.
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions:  (Continued)

Mortality Rates – Teachers:  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final 
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age 
and service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale No change

Mortality Rates – Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees 

Pre-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with scale BB 
to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

 Post-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.  

 Post-Disablement: 
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% 
of rates; females 125% of rates. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions:  (Continued)

Mortality Rates – Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees:  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended 
final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates
Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at 
each age and service year

Disability Rates Lowered disability rates
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees 

Pre-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with scale BB 
to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

 Post-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with 
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.  

 Post-Disablement: 
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% 
of rates; females 125% of rates. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions:  (Continued)

Mortality Rates – Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers – General Employees:  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial 
assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows: 

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended 
final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates
Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at 
each age and service year

Disability Rates Lowered disability rates
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 15%

NET GLI OPEB Liability 

The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Program represents the program’s total OPEB liability determined in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement 
date of June 30, 2018, NOL amounts for the GLI Program are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Group Life
 Insurance OPEB

Program

Total GLI OPEB Liability $ 3,113,508              
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,594,773              
Employers' Net GLI OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 1,518,735              

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability 51.22%

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is 
reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System’s notes to the financial statements and required 
supplementary information. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Weighted
Arithmetic Average
Long-term Long-term

Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return

Public Equity 40.00% 4.54% 1.82%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.69% 0.10%
Credit Strategies 15.00% 3.96% 0.59%
Real Assets 15.00% 5.76% 0.86%
Private Equity 15.00% 9.53% 1.43%

Total 100.00% 4.80%

Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.30%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.30%. However, one-year returns do not take into 
account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the 
system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The 
results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 
6.83%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. 
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NOTE 10—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:  (CONTINUED) 

Group Life Insurance:  (Continued) 

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS guidance and 
the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the 
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the 
member rate. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the rate contributed by the entity for the GLI 
OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General 
Assembly which was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2018 on, employers 
are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those 
assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount 
rate of 7.00%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point 
higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

Commission's proportionate 
share of the Group Life
Insurance Program
Net OPEB Liability $ 88,096                    $ 67,395                    $ 50,547                    

Rate

GLI Program Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the GLI Program’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS 
2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2018 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from 
the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2018-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the 
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500. 
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NOTE 11—INDIRECT COST ALLOCATIONS: 

Fringe Benefits 

Fringe benefit expense is allocated using the percentage of benefit to total labor costs.  The fringe benefit 
rate developed and used by the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 53.86% and was 
calculated as follows: 

Release time salaries $ 136,478
Payroll taxes 65,508        
Insurance 151,772
Retirement 42,881        
Other benefits 15,441        

Total fringe benefit expense $ 412,080      

Fringe benefit expenses $ 412,080      = 53.86%
Total labor costs $ 765,097      

Indirect Costs 

Indirect costs which support all projects, are allocated to the various projects based on the allocation rate 
applied to the projects direct labor and fringe benefit charges.  The indirect cost rate developed and used 
by the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 24.28% and was calculated as follows: 

Total indirect costs $ 259,378      = 24.28%
Direct labor and fringes $ 1,068,315
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NOTE 11—INDIRECT COST ALLOCATIONS:  (CONTINUED) 

Indirect Costs:  (Continued) 

The following items are included in the indirect costs allocated to projects: 

Indirect Personnel Costs
Indirect Chargeable Salary $ 70,576              
Employee Benefit Rate 38,286              
Total Indirect Personnel Costs $ 108,862            

Office Expenses
Auditing Services $ 5,150                
Payroll Accounting Services 4,827                
Legal Services 3,425                
Liability Insurance (General Liability Insurance) 993                   
Contractual Services (Management Consulting Services) 44,049              
Advertising (Job Postings and Procurement) 147                   
Postage 944                   
Telephone 5,196                
Internet Services 677                   
Office Supplies 4,043                
Printing & Binding 986                   
Travel 3,267                
Education & Training (Travel - Convention & Education) 2,081                
Dues, Subscriptions (Dues & Association Memberships) 7,315                
Publications (Books & Subscriptions) 251                   
Miscellaneous Expenses (Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses) 1,049                
Furniture & Fixtures -                       
Rental Office Equipment (Lease/Rent - Equipment) 2,455                
Office Rent/(Lease/Rent - Buildings) 56,539              
Computer Equipment/Software (EDP Equipment) 7,122                

Total Office Expenses $ 150,516            

Total Indirect Costs $ 259,378            

DIRECT CHARGEABLE PERSONNEL COSTS

Direct Chargeable Salaries $ 694,521
Employee Benefit Rate 373,794            

Total Direct Chargeable Personnel Costs $ 1,068,315

CALCULATION OF INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION RATE

Total Indirect Costs $ 259,378
Total Direct Chargeable Personnel Costs $ 1,068,315
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NOTE 12—CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

Federal programs in which the organization participates were audited in accordance with the provisions of 
the Uniform Guidance. Pursuant to the provisions of this circular all major programs and certain other 
programs were tested for compliance with applicable grant requirements. While no matters of 
noncompliance were disclosed by audit, the federal government may subject grant programs to additional 
compliance tests which may result in disallowed expenditures. In the opinion of management, any future 
disallowances of current grant program expenditures, if any, would be immaterial. 

NOTE 13—JOINT VENTURE: 

Central Virginia Radio Communications Board, established as a committee of Central Virginia Planning 
District Commission’s, is a joint venture formed in 1996, by a cooperative agreement between the County of 
Amherst, Virginia, the County of Bedford, Virginia, and the City of Lynchburg, Virginia, collectively the 
Member Jurisdictions, and Central Virginia Planning District Commission.  The Board consists of 
representatives from each of the Member Jurisdictions. 

The purpose of the Board is to operate the regional emergency communications system and to manage the 
project operations and maintenance in an efficient and cost effective manner.  The system was in need of 
significant upgrades or replacement to maintain or improve the level of emergency services provided by the 
Member Jurisdictions.  On May 8, 2012, the Commission, as fiscal agent, issued a bond in the amount of 
$13,100,000 to finance the equipping of a new emergency communications system.  The allocation of 
payments made to reimburse operational costs, capital costs, and any annual deficit associated with the 
project and system was determined pursuant to the following cost allocation methodology: 

Capital Costs: 

Amherst County – 28.00% 
Bedford County – 41.90% 
City of Lynchburg – 30.10% 

Operating Costs:  Each Member Jurisdiction’s share of annual operating costs shall be based on the number 
of radios on the System attributable to the Member Jurisdiction as a percentage of total Member 
Jurisdiction radios on the System.   

Annual Deficit:  Each Member Jurisdiction’s share of any Annual Deficit shall be based on the formulas for 
determining its share of Capital Costs or Operating Costs, or a combination of both formulas as appropriate, 
depending on the type of costs constituting the Annual Deficit.  Any unforeseen Operating Costs not included 
in the Annual Budget shall be treated as part of the Annual Deficit. 

The payments made by Member Jurisdictions to the Commission as described above are recorded as non-
operating revenue with the exception of payments received for project costs, which are recorded as 
contributed capital.   
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NOTE 14—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS: 

On May 8, 2012, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission issued a Series 2012 Public Facilities 
Revenue bond in the amount of $13,100,000 to finance the equipping of a new emergency communications 
system.  Annual principal payments ranging from $703,000 to $1,076,000 are due annually on May 1, 
commencing May 1, 2013 through May 1, 2027.  Interest at 3.04% is payable semi-annually commencing 
November 1, 2012, and on every May 1 and November 1 thereafter, until May 1, 2027.  The Commission is 
responsible for making debt service payments from payments received from each Member Jurisdiction.  The 
bonds are secured by the payments/revenue received from Member Jurisdictions and emergency 
communications equipment purchased with bond proceeds. 

A summary of long-term obligations is presented below: 

For the year ended June 30, 2019:

Balance Balance
July 1, Issuances/ Retirements/ June 30, Due Within
2018 Additions Reductions 2019 One Year

Direct Borrowings and Placements:
Revenue bonds $ 8,575,000 $ -            $ 838,000     $ 7,737,000 $ 865,000

Compensated absences 50,129      -            2,089         48,040 48,040
Net OPEB liabilities 171,112    38,843 36,572       173,382 -              

Totals $ 8,796,241 $ 38,843 $ 876,661     $ 7,958,422 $ 913,040

For the year ended June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance
July 1, Issuances/ Retirements/ June 30, Due Within
2017 Additions Reductions 2018 One Year

Direct Borrowings and Placements:
Revenue bonds $ 9,388,000 $ -            $ 813,000     $ 8,575,000 $ 838,000

Compensated absences 57,711      -            7,582         50,129 50,129
Net OPEB liabilities 192,822    11,261 32,971       171,112 -              

Totals $ 9,638,533 $ 11,261 $ 853,553     $ 8,796,241 $ 888,129
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NOTE 14—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:  (CONTINUED) 

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows: 

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30 Principal Interest

2020 $ 865,000 $ 235,205
2021 892,000       208,909
2022 920,000       181,792
2023 950,000       153,824
2024 980,000       124,944
2025 1,011,000    95,152
2026 1,043,000    64,418
2027 1,076,000    32,710

Total $ 7,737,000 $ 1,096,954
Less current portion: 865,000       235,205

  Total Long-term Obligations $ 6,872,000    $ 861,749

 Direct Borrowings and 
Placements 

NOTE 15—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES: 

The Commission implemented the financial reporting provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This Statement clarifies which liabilities 
governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. It also requires that additional 
essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements.  No restatement was 
required as a result of this implementation. 

The Commission early implemented provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 
89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2019. This Statement simplifies accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. Interest cost incurred during construction is expensed and no longer capitalized as part 
of project costs. No restatement was required as a result of this implementation.  
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Schedule of Commission's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2018

Proportionate Pension Plan's
Proportion Share of the NPA Fiduciary Net
of the Net Proportionate as a Percentage of Position as a

Measurement Pension Share of Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total
Date Asset (NPA) the NPA Payroll (3)/(4) Pension Asset
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

2018 48.1400% $ 512,833 $ 844,650 60.72% 145.61%
2017 48.1400% 465,335 718,162 64.80% 146.06%
2016 42.7000% 266,609 703,759 37.88% 131.99%
2015 42.7000% 294,516 743,560 39.61% 141.90%
2014 52.0000% 231,364 601,223 38.48% 146.20%
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Schedule of Employer Contributions - Pension
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2019

Contributions in
Relation to Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

2019 $ 41,894          $ 41,894            $ -                $ 874,489      4.79%
2018 49,714          49,714            -                844,650      5.89%
2017 39,903          39,903            -                637,007      6.26%
2016 52,488          52,488            -                703,759      7.46%
2015 46,854          46,854            -                626,889      7.47%
2014 52,488          52,488            -                703,759      7.46%
2013 64,918          64,918            -                367,068      17.69%
2012 64,113          64,113            -                439,030      14.60%
2011 58,736          58,736            -                425,518      13.80%
2010 44,313          44,313            -                440,220      10.07%

Current year contributions are from Commission records and prior year contributions are from the VRS
actuarial valuation performed each year.



47

CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 6

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Pension
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Largest 10 – Non-Hazardous Duty:

Lowered rates  
No change
Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Largest 10 – Hazardous Duty:

Increased rates
No change
Increased rate from 60% to 70%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:

Lowered rates  
No change
Increased rate from 14% to 15%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Hazardous Duty:

Adjusted rates to better fit experience  
No change
Decreased rate from 60% to 45%Line of Duty Disability

Retirement Rates Increased age 50 rates, and lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 

service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates
Salary Scale

Line of Duty Disability

Disability Rates
Salary Scale

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected to 
2020

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected to 
2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 

service through 9 years of service

Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the 
prior actuarial valuation.

Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 
service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected to 
2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages 
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience
Disability Rates
Salary Scale

Changes of assumptions – The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2016 based on
the most recent experience study of the System for the four-year period ending June 30, 2016:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 projected to 
2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 
to 75
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios - Health Insurance
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 through June 30, 2019

2018 2019
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 7,185          $ 7,127          
Interest 4,076          4,256          
Changes in assumptions (1,499)         1,464          
Benefit payments (13,178)       (19,242)
Net change in total OPEB liability $ (3,416)         $ (6,395)         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 115,798      112,382
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 112,382      $ 105,987

Covered payroll $ 231,174      $ 203,642

Commission's total OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of 
covered payroll 48.61% 52.05%



49

CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 8

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - OPEB - Health Insurance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Valuation Date: January 1, 2018
Measurement Date: June 30, 2019

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay related benefits.

Methods and assumptions used to determine OPEB liability:

3.50% as of June 30, 2019                          
2.50% per year as of June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method
Discount Rate

Demographic Assumptions Assumed 90% of future retirees under normal retirement will
elect to continue medical coverage and 60% under normal
retirement that will also elect to cover their spouse. Assumed
30% of participants retiring due to disability before normal
retirement eligibility will elect coverage and include their
spouse.

Inflation
Healthcare Trend Rate
Salary Increase Rates Salary increase rates of 3.5% - 5.35% including inflation

3.70% - 4.20% over 76 years

Entry Age Normal cost method
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Schedule of Commission's Share of Net OPEB Liability - Group life insurance 
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2018

Employer's
Proportionate Share

Employer's  of the Net GLI OPEB
Employer's Proportionate  Liability (Asset) Plan Fiduciary 

Proportion of the Share of the Employer's as a Percentage of Net Position as a
Net GLI OPEB Net GLI OPEB Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total

Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll (3)/(4) GLI OPEB Liability
(2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

0.00809% $ 58,730                $ 637,007 9.22% 48.86%
0.00927% 67,396                844,650 7.98% 51.22%

Date
(1)

2017

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 valuation is not available.
However, additional years will be included as they become available.

2018
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Schedule of Employer Contributions - Group life insurance
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2019

Contributions in
Relation to Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

2017 $ 2,888              $ 2,888                  $ -                $ 874,489      0.33%
2018 4,426              4,426                  -                844,650      0.52%
2019 4,661              4,661                  -                874,489      0.52%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 valuation is not
available.  However, additional years will be included as they become available.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Group life insurance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General State Employees

Adjusted rates to better match experience
No change
Increased rate from 14% to 25%

Teachers

Adjusted rates to better match experience
No change

SPORS Employees

Adjusted rates to better match experience
No change
Increased rate from 60% to 85%

VaLORS Employees

Adjusted rates to better fit experience  
No change
Decreased rate from 50% to 35%

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Changes of benefit terms – There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the 
prior actuarial valuation. 

Changes of assumptions – The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2016 based on the
most recent experience study of the System for the four-year period ending June 30, 2016:

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement 
from 70 to 75

Salary Scale

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 
service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement 
from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 
service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020 and reduced margin for future 
improvement in accordance with experience

Retirement Rates Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience
Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020 and reduced margin for future 
improvement in accordance with experience

Line of Duty Disability

Retirement Rates Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and 

service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION Exhibit 11
Page 2 of 2

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Group life insurance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued)

JRS Employees

Removed disability rates
No change

Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Lowered disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Lowered disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 14% to 15%

Largest Ten Locality Employers - Hazardous Duty Employees

Increased disability rates
No change
Increased rate from 60% to 70%

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - Hazardous Duty Employees

Adjusted rates to better match experience
No change
Decreased rate from 60% to 45%

Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Retirement Rates Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each 

age and service year

Disability Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each 
age and service year

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each 
age and service year

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages
Withdrawal Rates

Line of Duty Disability

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final 
retirement age from 70 to 75

Disability Rates
Salary Scale

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Salary Scale

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final 
retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each 
age and service year

Disability Rates

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement 
healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014 
projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Decreased rates at first retirement eligibility
Withdrawal Rates No change
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission  
Lynchburg, Virginia 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, 
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of Central Virginia Planning District Commission as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 18, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Central Virginia Planning 
District Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Central 
Virginia Planning District Commission’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Charlottesville, Virginia 
November 18, 2019 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Lynchburg, Virginia 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2019.  Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Central Virginia Planning District Commission’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.  
 

ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Central Virginia Planning District Commission is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Central Virginia Planning 
District Commission’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Virginia Planning 
District Commission’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Charlottesville, Virginia 
November 18, 2019 
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Entity Identifying Federal 

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

Environmental Protection Agency
Pass-through payments:
    Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
        Chesapeake Bay Program 66.466 $ 50,000          
                     Total Environmental Protection Agency $ 50,000          

Department of Labor
Pass-through payments:
Virginia Community College System:
    City of Lynchburg, Virginia:
     Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster:
         WIOA Adult Program 17.258 LWDA 7 $ 432,893        
         WIOA Youth Activities 17.259 LWDA 7 611,170        
         WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 17.278 LWDA 7 296,841        
           Subtotal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster 1,340,904     
     WIOA Dislocated Workers National Reserve Technical Assistance
        and Training 17.281 LWDA 7 24,667          
                 Total Department of Labor $ 1,365,571     

Department of Transportation
Pass-through payments:
Virginia Department of Transportation:
  Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
    Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 FY-19 $ 245,943        
    Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State  
      and Non-Metropolitan Planning and Research 20.505 unavailable 97,408          

              Total Department of Transportation $ 343,351        

              Total expenditures of federal awards $ 1,758,922     
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CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1- Basis of Presentation:

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Subrecipients
No awards were passed through to subreceipients.

Note 4 - Indirect Cost Rate

Note 5 – Relationship to Financial Statements

Primary government:
Operating activities $ 1,758,922

Total federal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,758,922

(1) Expenditures on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Federal expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the Commission’s financial
statements as follows:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Central Virginia Planning District Commission under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Central
Virginia Planning District Commission, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Central Virginia Planning District Commission.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The Commission did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
Uniform Guidance.

(3) The Commission did not have any loans or loan guarantees which are subject to reporting
requirements for the year.
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Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster
17.258 WIOA Adult Program
17.259 WIOA Youth Activities
17.278 WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

There are no financial statement findings to report.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no federal award findings and questioned costs to report.

Section IV - Prior Year Audit Findings 

There were no prior year audit findings.

CENTRAL VIRGINIA PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019



Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY20

Actual  as of  December 31, 2019

Actual 

as of

6/30/19

FY 20

Adjusted

Budget

Actual 

as of

12/31/19

Diff Between

Budget &

Actual

% of Budget

Used

OPERATIONS FUND (EXPENDITURES)

SALARY

ADMINISTRATION 163,253 169,935 81,995 87,940 48.25%

FINANCE 138,872 141,649 78,302 63,347 55.28%

OPERATIONS 223,588 278,060 114,030 164,030 41.01%
525,712 589,644 274,327 315,317 46.52%

PART TIME HELP 10,000 0 10,000 0.00%

Total Salaries & Wages 525,712 599,644 274,327 325,317 45.75%

EMPLOYER COST FICA 38,590 45,736 19,569 26,167 42.79%
EMPLOYER COST V R S 24,755 27,772 12,854 14,918 46.28%
EMPLOYER COST HEALTH INS 82,456 89,024 48,758 40,267 54.77%
EMPLOYER COST LIFE INS 6,887 7,724 3,594 4,131 46.52%
WORKERS COMP 1,462 1,500 1,835 (335) 122.36%

Total Fringe Benefits 154,151 171,757 86,610 85,147 50.43%

OFFICE EXPENSES
AUDITING SERVICES 5,150 5,775 5,775 0.00%
PAYROLL ACCOUNTING SERVICES 4,827 6,870 707 6,164 10.28%
LEGAL SERVICES 3,425 3,000 165 2,835 5.50%
LIABILITY INSURANCE 993 1,000 961 39 96.12%
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 44,049 22,500 12,703 9,797 56.46%
ADVERTISING 147 1,000 1,000 0.00%
POSTAGE 944 1,000 211 789 21.09%
TELEPHONE 5,196 6,400 2,329 4,071 36.39%
INTERNET SERVICES 677 700 272 428 38.81%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,043 6,000 2,422 3,578 40.36%
PRINTING & BINDING 986 1,500 1,500 0.00%
TRAVEL 3,267 7,500 1,378 6,122 18.37%
SPECIAL MEETINGS 5,227 7,000 1,960 5,040 28.00%
EDUCATION & TRAINING 2,081 8,000 1,856 6,145 23.19%
DUES, SUBSCRIPTIONS 7,315 10,800 8,233 2,567 76.23%
PUBLICATIONS 251 500 99 401 19.79%
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 1,049 1,000 296 704 29.56%
FURNITURE & FIXTURES 0 1,000 1,000 0.00%
RENTAL OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,455 4,000 816 3,184 20.39%
OFFICE RENT 56,539 57,056 28,625 28,431 50.17%
PARKING 1,580 1,800 600 1,200 33.33%
COMPUTER EQUIP/SOFTWARE 7,122 12,000 5,923 6,077 49.36%

Total Office Expenses 157,323 166,401 69,554 96,847 41.80%

Total Operations Expenses 837,186 937,802 430,491 507,311 45.90%
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Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY20

Actual  as of  December 31, 2019

Actual 

as of

6/30/19

FY 20

Adjusted

Budget

Actual 

as of

12/31/19

Diff Between

Budget &

Actual

% of Budget

Used

Total Operations Expenses (from Page 1) 837,186 937,802 430,491 507,311 45.90%

Direct Project Expenses

Amherst CDBG - Old Town Madison Heights 57 500 856 (356) 171.23%
Appomattox CDBG - Meadowlark 428 500 199 301 39.79%
Appomattox Town Comp Plan 755 74 681 9.83%
Appomattox Recovery Planning Grant 661 1,500 476 1,024 31.72%
CEDS 827 0 0 0.00%
Chesapeake Bay 303 250 250 0.00%
CVTC 0 150,000 (150,000) 0.00%
DHCD   855 2,500 390 2,110 15.60%
DRPT / FTA 7,868 30,641 750 29,891 2.45%
Hazard Mitigation 564 59,691 37,885 21,806 63.47%
Pamplin VDH Water 271 0 927 (927) 0.00%
Regional Radio Board 503 1,000 160 840 15.99%
RideSolutions 18,520 20,754 4,600 16,154 22.17%
VDOT - PL 12,191 18,750 8,948 9,802 47.72%
VDOT - Rural 12,764 2,500 5,871 (3,371) 234.86%
WIOA   275,129 544,004 147,867 396,137 27.18%

Total Direct Project Expenses 330,941 683,345 359,004 324,341 52.54%

TOTAL OPERATING & DIRECT PROJECT 

EXPENSES $1,168,127 $1,621,147 $789,495 $831,652 48.70%

Pass Thru Expenses 

Regional Radio Board 1,176,339 1,149,988 674,094 475,894 58.62%
VDOT - PL 87,500 78,750 23,519 55,231 29.87%

WIOA 1,084,679 950,000 494,566 455,434 52.06%

Total Pass Thru Expenses $2,348,518 $2,178,738 $1,192,179 $986,559 54.72%

Total Expenses $3,516,645 $3,799,885 $1,981,674 $1,818,212 52.15%
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Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY20

Actual  as of  December 31, 2019

Actual 

as of

6/30/18

FY 20

Adjusted

Budget

Actual 

as of

12/31/19

Diff Between

Budget &

Actual

% Of Budget 

Received

Revenues

OPERATIONS FUND (REVENUE)

Dues 154,774 155,420 155,420 0 100.00%
Miscellaneous Revenue 13,579 12,000 10,868 1,132 90.57%

Total Operations Revenue 168,353 167,420 166,287 1,133 99.32%

Direct Project Revenues

Amherst County - Old Town Madison Heights 5,360 13,800 13,800 0.00%
Amherst Construction Ready 750 750 0.00%
Appomattox CDBG - Meadow Lark 11,000 22,500 6,500 16,000 28.89%
Appomattox Town Comp Plan 14,918 14,918 0.00%
Appomattox Recovery Planning & construction Grant 6,725 9,400 5,275 4,125 56.12%
Chesapeake Bay 50,000 21,500 21,500 0 100.00%
DHCD 75,971 72,471 37,985 34,486 52.41%
DRPT / FTA 108,379 133,638 54,414 79,224 40.72%
Hazard Mitigation 17,500 63,700 63,700 0.00%
Pamplin VDH Water 2,500 0 0 0.00%
Regional Radio Board 25,000 25,000 12,970 12,030 51.88%
Region 2000 Services Authority 160,224 170,838 79,548 91,290 46.56%
RideSolutions 50,450 44,603 19,572 25,031 43.88%
VDOT-PL 132,686 136,286 49,248 87,038 36.14%
VDOT-Rural 58,000 58,000 10,639 47,361 18.34%
WIOA 344,961 609,004 181,215 427,789 29.76%

Total Direct Project Revenues 1,048,755 1,396,408 478,866 917,542 34.29%

Interest 12,927 7,000 6,690 310 95.57%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & DIRECT PROJECT 

REVENUES 1,230,036 1,570,828 651,844 918,984 41.50%

 Surplus/(Use of Fund) Balance 61,909 (50,319) (137,651) 87,332

Funding from Fund Balance 150,000

Funding from Fund Balance 0 0 150,000 (150,000) 0.00%

$61,909 ($50,319) $12,349 ($62,668)

Pass Thru Revenue
Regional Radio Board 1,277,456 1,149,988 927,344 222,644 80.64%

VDOT - PL 78,750 78,750 23,519 55,231 29.87%

WIOA 1,091,209 950,000 450,706 499,294 47.44%

Total Pass Thru Revenues $2,447,415 $2,178,738 $1,401,569 $777,169 64.33%

0

Total Revenue 3,677,450 3,749,566 2,203,413 1,546,153 58.76%

Net Surplus/(Use of Fund) Balance 160,805 (50,319) 221,739
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Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Cash and Estimated Fund Balance 

as of December 31, 2019

CASH ON HAND

Sun Trust Checking

CVPDC Funds 264,200

WIA Trainit Funds 4,429

Petty Cash 112

Local Govt Invest Pool 399,750

Cash on Hand 668,491$       

CALCULATION OF ESTIMATED YEAR-END FUND BALANCE

Estimated Year-end Fund Balance 797,657$       

775,534 810,675 865,736 902,952 933,423 996,780 952,354 927,368 936,067 997,976 
797,657 
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Agenda material for January 16, 2020 Commission meeting 

RE: Strategic Directions:  Strengthening the Manufacturing 
Eco-System in the Lynchburg/Central Virginia Region 

At the PDC meeting on November 21 we agreed to focus on Advanced Manufacturing as an 
area to move our region forward.   

Three approaches to consider: 

1. Develop a Strategic Plan to strengthen the Manufacturing Eco-System: Working with 
the Commission and local stakeholders, develop an implementation plan that 
compliments and expands our Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS): 

a. Identify the gaps in our ability to support the manufacturing sector 
b. Recommend mechanisms to coordinate the existing resources that are available 
c. Identify opportunities and program to increase the skills and readiness of 

workforce 
d. Estimated Cost:  $50,000-$70,000 

 
2. Focus our energies and resources working with the Central Virginia Community 

College to develop a regional Career and Technical Education (CTE) Academy for dual-
enrollment students, recent high school graduates, and unemployed or underemployed 
adults on the grounds of Central Virginia Community College.  

a. Offer matching funds to hire a CTE Director to begin the planning and 
implementation 

b. Estimated cost:  $100,000 over two years 
  

3. In Partnership with the Regional Business Alliance, focus our energies and financial 
resources on developing site ready facilities to attract more manufacturing to the 
region.   

a. Offer funds to assist a locality in bringing sites up to site ready status. 
b. Would likely ask that locality to establish a revenue sharing or pay-back model. 
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Option 1:  Create an Implementation Plan to strengthen our region’s (Advanced) 
Manufacturing Sector 

Look before you leap…first assess the region’s Manufacturing Sector and then develop an 
implementation plan to support/strengthen the region’s manufacturing sector. 

Objective:  Identify the most effective steps to support and strengthen our manufacturing 
economy 

Process:  Very inclusive assessment of current resources, identification of gaps, and 
examination of opportunities.  The process will include several meetings, focus groups and 
surveys with manufacturing community and stakeholders that support them.  Complimentary 
process to the CEDS (Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy). 

Outcome/Product:   

1. Data Driven “To Do List” identifying resources and responsibilities 
2. Target Priorities 
3. Reality Based, solutions oriented 
4. Likely workforce development heavy 

 

Option 2:  Use our resources to support the development of a Regional Career and Technical 
Education Academy on the Central Virginia Community College Campus 

One can argue that improving our workforce to better meet the employment needs of regional 
manufacturers can be the biggest return on our investment.  An additional facility on the CVCC 
campus and/or in the surrounding community with enhanced classes might be a significant step 
in our efforts to respond to the needs of our manufacturing community. 

Many pieces are falling into place that would indicate that the timing is good to invest time and 
resources on additional workforce opportunities that would benefit our manufacturing sector. 

Recently the region’s public school superintendents have collectively asked CVCC to work 
toward the establishment of a regional Career Technical Education Academy (CTE) on campus.  
This directly corresponds with the regional CEDS Key Initiative 7 of establishing a Regional 
Workforce Center on the CVCC Campus. 

Governor Northam’s 2020-2022 budget proposes funds for G3 (Get Skilled, Get a Job, Give 
Back) programs to increase technical education classes and make technical education more 
affordable.  Recently the Community College completed a study of the additional classes that 
could be provided with additional G3 funding.  These classes include: 

• Level I:  Industrial Maintenance CSC 
• Level II:  Industrial maintenance Technology CSC 
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• Level III: Industrial maintenance AAS 
• Heavy Equipment Operator 
• National Center for Construction Education and Research (NCCER) – Electrical I 
• Level III Industrial Maintenance – Welding Specialization 

One approach would be to offer to be a partner with CVCC in the development of a regional 
Career and Technical Education Academy and offer matching cash resources to provide staff 
to implement the G3 curriculum and programs.   

Proposals have been made to the Community College about the hiring of a CTE Operations 
Director and a Business Development Director to begin building the foundation for a CTE 
Academy at CVCC and to begin the coordination with stakeholders. 

We have a variety of education providers and sometimes these providers find themselves in 
competition with each other.  There’s a lot of coordination needed in our workforce education 
programs to build a regional approach and to identify the most appropriate facilities. There are 
already several committees in place for business, education and government stakeholders. 

 

Option 3:  Utilize our resources to create more site ready facilities 

Without ready to go sites, manufacturers have limited choices about relocating/expanding in 
this region.  Manufacturers are looking for sites that are ready and our region has a limited 
supply of ready to go sites.  

GO Virginia and the Regional Business Alliance are working to upgrade six existing 
commercial/industrial sites along the site readiness scale and clarify next steps for moving all 
sites to at least Tier III on the Virginia Business Site Readiness Scale.  Once that grant is 
completed, there will be two sites in our region that qualify as site ready. 

We should seek opportunities to use our time and resources to make more sites ready.  
Prioritizing our efforts in developing sites for manufacturing may mean that localities will have 
to share resources and tax revenues.   
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More detail about Option 1…what a strategic plan might include:   

Our strategic plan should aim to create a regional environment that enables existing 
manufacturers to grow and new manufacturers to emerge. 

• Development of a regional manufacturing strategy to strengthen our manufacturing 
ecosystems 

1) Inventory/picture of the region’s manufacturing  
2) Goals 
3) Champions 
4) Examine whether to incorporate beyond our Central Virginia footprint 
5) What is our competitive reality? 

 

• Technology Acceleration 

1) What are the resources to help our businesses with information, advice about 
technology and commercialization of technology? 

2) How can we build relationships with colleges/universities so that research doors are 
more accessible? 

 

• Workforce Development – Enhancing workforce skills for the manufacturing sector 

1) Regional Assessment 
2) Aligning our relationships and resources 
3) Strengthen connection between education and jobs 
4) Re-engage adult learners and disconnected youth 
5) Are there specific things that the education community can do to create a larger pool of 

workers qualified for the manufacturing sector? 
a. Better align education, workforce and economic development assets for lifelong 

learning 
b. Apprenticeship programs 

 

• Business Assistance - Firm Growth 

1) Do manufacturing firms, regardless of size, have adequate access to capital, investors? 
2) Is there adequate technical support, business advice, and entrepreneurial support 
3) Do manufacturers need help with how to achieve value-added processes, lower 

manufacturing costs and improved productivity 
 

• Connector-Facilitator 

1) Especially to universities who may help with product commercialization 
2) Facilitation of supply chains and introductions 

 

• Future trends analysis 
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This strategic analysis may include: 

• Are we focused on the future needs of manufacturing companies? 
• Can we take action that improve measurable competitiveness? 
• How do we strengthen our manufacturing/economic clusters that support each other? 
• Are there local actions we can do 

1) Competitive tax and regulatory environment 
2) Develop a culture of innovation and competitive business climate 
3) Support ecosystems 

 

Can we strengthen our regional eco-system for manufacturing? 

As part of a regional assessment, survey existing manufacturers: 

• Corporate tax rate 
• Ease of doing business 
• Availability of capital 
• Incentives for investment 
• Quality of road infrastructure  
• Quality of rail infrastructure 
• Utility costs 
• University-industry collaboration in R & D 
• Availability of scientists and engineers 
• Size of labor pool 
• Ability to attract and retain talent 
• Flexibility of labor market 
• Cooperation in labor-employee relations 
• Employee training 
• Local supplier quality  
• Local supplier availability 
• Assistance with exporting 

 

Identify the mechanisms to measure whatever we do 

 



1 
 

Background material on Advanced Manufacturing in the Central Virginia Region – 1-16-20 

Prepared by Gary Christie 

 
1. Strategic Directions:  Advanced Manufacturing 

At the PDC meeting on November 21 we agreed to focus on Advanced Manufacturing as an 
area to move our region forward.   

We are justifiably proud of the number of engineers in various fields that we have here in the 
region, the extensive wireless communications component of our economy,  the significant 
manufacturing processes that many of our producers use, and our strong tradition of fine 
machining and precision manufacturing here. 

Manufacturing remains a significant part of our economy and pays significantly better than 
most other jobs.  It makes sense for us to focus on this part of our economy. 

Throughout the briefing paper I’m using Manufacturing and Advanced Manufacturing 
interchangeably.  All current and future manufacturing needs to have technology integrated 
throughout the manufacturing process.  In effect, all manufacturing becomes advanced 
manufacturing. 

 

2. Overview:   

In Lynchburg Metro area manufacturing contributes significantly to our economy 

Manufacturing is 13.7% of the total jobs (14,884 manufacturing jobs out of 108,397 total jobs) 
in the Lynchburg region.   

Healthcare – 16.4% 
Manufacturing – 13.7% 
Retail – 12.3% 

 

There was a big decline in the number of manufacturing jobs in the region from 2000 to 2009.  
Since then the number of manufacturing jobs has held steady adding 125 jobs (0.2%) over the 
past 5 years. 

The number of manufacturing establishments/businesses has dropped by 11% to 297 from 
2008-2018 although the number of jobs has remained mostly constant.  The number of 
manufacturing firms have fallen, but as one closes, others have hired the manufacturing talent 
so that the number of jobs has remained constant. 

Total manufacturing jobs in Lynchburg are forecasted to drop by only 1.3% (187 jobs) over the 
next year. 
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Annual hiring demand for manufacturing jobs is 1,360, mostly due to retirements and turnover. 

We have about 66% more manufacturing jobs than one would expect to find when compared 
to other regions nationally. 

It is by far the largest part of our gross domestic product in 2018. 

$10.1 Billion Gross Domestic Product in the Lynchburg Region 

 27.3% - manufacturing ($2.8 Billion) 
 12.4% - healthcare 
 10.3% - real estate, rental, leasing 
 7.0% - retail 
 5.9% - professional, scientific, technical 
 
And manufacturing’s 27% share of the region’s GDP has been a stable for the past five years 
 
Manufacturers will purchase $1 billion or 25% of their supplies from Central Virginia businesses 
in 2019. 
  

Manufacturing jobs pay better than other jobs in the Lynchburg region 

$62,918 avg wage per worker for manufacturing jobs, up 2.5% over last 10 years.  The average 
wage among all of Lynchburg’s jobs is $41,955. 

(Source:  Manufacturing Region 2000/Central VA (WDA 7) Industry Spotlight, 2019 JobsEQ, 
Chmura Economics and Analytics) 

 

3. Manufacturing Nationally 

As technology becomes integrated into the manufacturing process, we know nationally there is 
a skills mismatch…that manufacturing jobs have shifted from lower-skill to higher-skilled 
workers and that manufacturing workers are more likely to need post high school education.  
Nationally manufacturing job openings have increased from 1.8% in 2001 to 3.1% in 2017.  
From antidotal experience we can say that we experience the same the trend of having more 
demand than supply of skilled manufacturing workers here in Lynchburg. 

The nation and Lynchburg faces the need to replace retirees as well as meet the need for new 
growth jobs.  The report stated that nationally 2.7 million (manufacturing) employees are likely 
to be needed as a result of retirements of existing workforce while 700,000 are likely due to 
natural business growth. 

There has also been a decline in people being willing to move for jobs (cross regional 
migration).     
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Technology is an inherent part of our manufacturing economy.  U.S. Factories produce twice as 
much as they did in the mid-1980s.  We produce those goods with one-third fewer workers.  
U.S. continues to produce close to 20% of all of the products worldwide.    

Manufacturing is more important to the rural economy than it is to the urban economy because 
manufacturing traditionally is a higher percentage of the jobs available and provide a higher 
wage (USDA, Economic Research Service, Bulletin 177, August 2017).  

Manufacturing opportunities continue, but it is competitive 

As the manufacturing sector continues to evolve, the shift to higher value advanced industries 
is increasing the competitiveness of more developed places.  A 2016 Deloitte report concludes 
that talent, cost competitiveness, productivity and supplier networks are the most important 
factors, in that order.  

International Economic Development Council has highlighted what it believes places need to 
prioritize to support new manufacturing: 

• Building a quality workforce 
• Cultivating innovation capacity 
• Supporting manufacturing entrepreneurship 
• Forging global networks 
• Going green as major manufactures aggressively pursue energy and waste 

reductions…”) 

(2016 Global Manufacturing Competitiveness Index, Deloitte, Touche, Tohmatsu Limited) 

 

4. Examples of what other regions are doing 
 

A. Manufacturing Extension Partnership 

The U.S. Department of Commerce’s National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
supports the Manufacturing Extension Partnership.  In Virginia, the GENEDGE ALLIANCE out of 
Martinsville has a board appointed by the Governor and serves the entire state. 

GENEDGE is a business consulting organization providing Virginia’s industrial and manufacturing 
sectors access to expert business solutions. 

Bill Donohue, 276-666-8890 x 221, bdonohue@genedge.org, www.genedge.org   

 

 

 

mailto:bdonohue@genedge.org
http://www.genedge.org/
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B. Manufacturing Technology Center of Southwest Virginia (since 1994), Wytheville  
(www.Mtcofswva.org) 

Providing technical business resources for manufacturers for 17 counties and 4 cities in 
Southwest Virginia 

Services: 

Consulting and education services for manufacturers 

• Continuous Improvement 
• Industrial Engineering Services 
• Lean Six Sigma Green Belt and Project Support Course 
• Lean Six Sigma Yellow Belt Course 
• Quality Management Systems 

Environmental Compliance and Pollution Prevention Assistance 

•  Environmental and Energy 
•  Health and Safety Services 

Nelson Teed, MTC Executive Director, 276-223-4889, nteed@wcc.vccs.edu, 
www.mtcofswva.org.  

C. City of Lynchburg and Campbell County partnership with EWI to promote business 
expansion and innovation (October 2, 2019 Opportunity Lynchburg) 

EWI is a non-profit advanced engineering service provider with applied research and 
development capabilities.  EWI helps manufacturers overcome technical barriers and finds 
advanced solutions to make their products more quickly and efficiently. 

• EWI is engaging with Lynchburg companies to determine their interest in partnering for 
business and economic development 

• Will create a plan that focuses on financial sustainability and determining economic risk 
and reward factors 

• May include locating a new applied R & D facility  

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.mtcofswva.org/
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/Continuous%20Improvement.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/industrial.engineering.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/Lean_Six_Sigma_Green_Belt.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/Lean_Six_Sigma_Yellow_Belt.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/quality.management.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/E3_flyer_032318.pdf
http://mtcofswva.org/sites/mtcofswva.org/files/health.safety.pdf
mailto:nteed@wcc.vccs.edu
http://www.mtcofswva.org/
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D. Investing in Manufacturing Communities Partnership (IMCP) designation 

Administered by the federal Economic Development Administration, IMCP designated 24 (12 in 
2014, 12 in 2015) communities as a “Manufacturing Community” based on their capacity to 
create well paid jobs, spur innovation, and improve workforce development in the 
manufacturing sector. 

• Worker training and placement 
o Improving training pathways, providing matching mechanism for worker 

placement 
• Industry innovation and competitiveness 

o Sector based strategies/incentives 
• Connecting smaller businesses with resources 

o Coordinating regional supply chains 
o Access to capital for small and medium sized businesses 

Eleven participating government agencies, led by the Federal Department of Commerce’s 
Economic Development Administration, distributed a request for proposals inviting locals and 
regions to band together to envision a regional industrial development strategy. 

Communities designated by the “Investing In Manufacturing Communities Partnership” include: 

• Washington Puget Sound/Spokane – Aerospace 
• Pacific Northwest Advance Materials/Advanced Wood Products Cross Laminated Timber 
• Central Valley California (28 counties) – AFB (military base) 
• Southern California – Aerospace and Defense 
• Utah Salt Lake City & Provo – Advanced Composites 
• South Central Idaho – AFB 
• Alamo/San Antonio – Aerospace, Motor Vehicles, Vehicle Parts, Industrial Vehicles 
• South Kansas/Wichita – Aerospace 
• Peoria – Heavy Equipment Original Equipment Manufacturers, Electrical Equipment 

Machining 
• Minneapolis – Medical Device 
• Madison – AFB 
• Milwaukee – Water, Midwest Energy Research Consortium, Food and Beverage 
• Chicago – Metal Manufacturing 
• SE Michigan/Detroit – Autos 
• Southwest Ohio – Aerospace, Supply Chain 
• Mid South/Memphis – Medical Device 
• Louisiana – Chemical Manufacturing, Energy Related Projects 
• Southwest Alabama – Ship Building, Aerospace 
• Northwest Georgia – Carpets, Textiles 
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• Tennessee Valley – Alut and Auto Supply Chain 
• Greater Pittsburgh – Metals Manufacturing 
• Connecticut – Aerospace, Ship Building 
• Greater Portland – Food and Beverage, Seafood 
• New York Finger Lakes/Rochester – Optics, Precision Machining, Photonics Imaging 

This Federal program was not reauthorized since 2016.  A bipartisan bill has been introduced in 
both the Senate and the house to re-authorize but has not been acted upon. 

Biggest outcome of the program is coordination and partnership development.  A key goal of 
the program was to spur enhanced strategic coordination.  The program offered some grant 
funding, but most communities noted the benefits of focus and coordination among groups. 

It was noted that strengthening workforce development pipelines requires coordination in 
order to align priorities of education with needs of industry. 

 

E. South Texas North American Advanced Manufacturing Research and Education 
Initiative (since the 1990s)   www.naamrei.org  

Focus on  

• developing a manufacturing workforce capable of supporting the most advanced 
manufacturing activities.  A world class talent workforce pool. 

• creating a climate of innovation and entrepreneurship that will support technological 
innovation in manufacturing 

• establishing itself as a center for advanced manufacturing by creating a talent pipeline 
that touches all aspects of the workforce, from students to engineers and executives 
 

Businesses have access to talent and talent development through partner organizations: 

• University centers (Texas A & M International, University of Texas-Pan American, 
University of Texas at Brownsville) 

• Community Colleges (South Texas College, Laredo Community College, Texas State 
Technical College, Texas Southmost College) 

• K-12 School districts (37 school districts and ten charter school system 
• Region One Education Service Center 

o T-STEM Learning Center services teachers, administrators and students of T-
STEM Academics 

o Career cluster programs in K-12 systems 
• Three Workforce boards 
• Economic development organizations 

http://www.naamrei.org/
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Incubation Resources 

Entrepreneurship Support 

• Business planning services 
• Economic incentive packages 
• Educational programs and workshops 
• Entrepreneurial education 
• Grant development assistance 

 

F. Advanced Manufacturing and Protype Center of East Tennessee (AMP!) 

AMP! has four strategic approaches:  

• Promote growth for manufacturers in the 20-county region surrounding Oak Ridge and 
Knoxville 

• Expand the use of newer technologies within existing manufacturers 
• Connect resources like the Oak Ridge National Laboratory to manufacturers to 

encourage the collaboration and expansion of advanced manufacturing jobs 
• To utilize Oak Ridge Lab’s manufacturing Demonstration Facility 
• Develop a workforce to drive innovation and entrepreneurship 
• Innovate and improve manufacturing processes and technologies  
•  

Partners: 

• Oak Ridge National Laboratory 
• Pellissippi State Community College 
• University of Tennessee Center for Industrial Services 

Established a new manufacturing network – the Regional Advanced Manufacturing Partnership 
(RAMP).  RAMP encourages networking among the region’s manufacturers, regardless of size.  
This network can lead to supply-chain opportunities and sharing of best practices.   

RAMP connects manufacturers to key resources, especially resources available through the Oak 
Ridge Lab.  RAMP partners broker agreements for smaller manufacturers and Oak Ridge.   

“Companies often need assistance in finding and connecting to the right services, 
particularly when resources (such as national labs, universities) often do not present an 
obvious front door or public explanation of the services that they offer”. 

“Creates a common regional narrative helping bring partners together and connect 
seemingly disparate efforts into a more coordinated effort (such as establishing a talent 
pipeline).” 
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“Awareness of how new technologies might be applied to a specific manufacturing 
process spreads incrementally.” 

Through AMP! The Pellissippi State Technical Community College is able to offer a degree 
concentration that enables students and workers to earn a certificate in additive 
manufacturing.  AMP! partners are involved in FIRST Robotics competitions for high school 
students. 

 

G. New Mexico Small Business Assistance Program 

The New Mexico Small Business Assistance Program (www.nmsbaprogram.org) provides a 
similar service providing technical assistance connecting small and medium-sized 
manufacturers to advance expertise and resources of universities and national labs. 

 

H. Northwest Wisconsin’s EporTech Initiative 

A nine week program providing intensive counseling for companies that are either new to 
exporting, or looking to grow their international markets in more deliberate ways. 

Partners Involved: 

• University of Wisconsin-Stout Manufacturing Outreach Center 
• U.S. Export Assistance Center 
• Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation, local economic development organizations, 

and Chambers of Commerce 
• Private sector volunteers and experts 

 

I. SelectUSA 

A program of the U.S. Department of Commerce, SelectUSA supports manufacturers who are 
working to attract foreign investments.  

 

Attachments: 

Manufacturing, Region 2000/Central VA (Workforce Development Area 7), 2019, JobsEQ, 
Chmura Economics and Analytics 

Economic Overview, Region 2000/Central VA (Workforce Development Area 7), December 3, 
2019, JobsEQ, Chmura Economics and Analytics 

Manufacturing Competitive Indexes 2019, Virginia compared to other states 

http://www.nmsbaprogram.org/
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Virginia Manufacturing Competitive Indexes  
Updated November 2019  
Introduction to the Indexes  

The Virginia Manufacturers Association has worked for the past several years to develop a multifactor 
Manufacturing Competitiveness Index that allows members and policymakers to assess complex data 
and inform strategic choices. This data analytics tool is used to help craft our messaging and policy 
agenda. 

In 2017, the Virginia Manufacturers Association Board reviewed the metrics used in the Manufacturing 
Competitiveness Index report, which was part of A New Blueprint – Making the American South’s 
Manufacturing Sector More Competitive by 2030, a report for the Economic Development 
Administration.  In addition, the Association held several member meetings to review the individual 
metrics and discuss the rankings. The original report divided the metrics into five categories: Business 
Climate, Workforce, Infrastructure, Innovation and Economic Strength.  For the 2017 report, the 
categories of metrics were weighted to calculate the final state rankings.   

This was followed up with a report in 2018, which used the same metrics as the 2017 report.  The data 
was updated to the most recent available. The only significant change from the 2017 report was that the  
indexes are not weighted in the final overall state rankings.  At the direction of the Virginia 
Manufacturers Association, the index weighting was removed, and all the indexes carried equal weight.   

This year the existing metrics were updated, where available, and were used to rank the fifty states. In 
addition, the Board decided to add three new metrics. Right-to-Work was added to the Workforce Index 
as a positive measure.  In the Economic Strength Index two metrics were added that reflect 
manufacturing’s impact on private sector GDP.  

RIGHT-TO-WORK STATES 2019- IN GREEN
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Data was gathered from public sources including the Bureau of Economic Analysis, National Science 
Foundation, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Energy Information Administration, and the US Census Bureau. 
Indicators were standardized to account for differences in states’ population or economy size. The most 
recent available data was used, meaning most data is from the years 2018 or 2019. To evaluate time 
trends, a five-year percent change was used. All data, and these tools, are part of a broader competitive 
picture and should be used in conjunction with other information to further public policy discussion to 
improve Virginia’s economy. 

The Index Results 

Business Climate Index 

Manufacturing sensitive to labor costs and other costs of doing business. These factors are often cited as 
critical reasons when manufacturing companies consider expansion or relocation. The Business Climate 
Index focuses on wages, taxes, and legal barriers. These metrics are often related to state government 
policy choices and are opportunities for states to make changes that will improve manufacturing 
competitiveness. The Business Climate Index consisted of the following nine metrics. 

Business Climate Index Metrics  

 Manufacturing Industry Health Scorecard (Conexus Indiana) 2019 
 Top marginal corporate tax rate 2019 
 Legal Climate Rankings 2019 
 Air Quality – Average Exposure to PM2.5 2017 
 Workers Comp insurance premium per $100/payroll 2018  
 State and Local Tax Costs for Capital-Intensive Manufacturing 2014 (this metric was not updated 

as more current information is not available) 
 State and Local Tax Costs for Labor-Intensive Manufacturing 2014 (this metric was not updated 

as more current information is not available) 
 Value of $100 2019 
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions Per Capita (Metric Tons of CO2) 2017 

Business Climate Index Performance 

In the 2018 index Virginia ranked as the 5th most competitive state. As can be seen in the new data 
below, Virginia is now ranked 8th, ranking in second place of all Southern states.  In the individual 
metrics, Virginia has remained stable, with the rankings staying the same or shifting by one position, 
except for Top Marginal Corporate Tax Rate which moved from 16th position nationally in 2018 to 19th  in 
2019, as several other states have aggressively reduced their corporate tax rate. Virginia’s 
Manufacturing Health Scorecard ranking moved from a “D” to “D-“ which changed the state’s rank for 
this metric from 39th to 44th; the Legal Climate Ranking, (from the Institute for Legal Reform) moved 
from 10th nationally in 2018 to 12th in 2019; and the bi-annual Workers Compensation Premium Rating 
fell from 5th nationally in 2018 to 10th in 2019. 
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Southern States Business Climate Index Performance 

State 
Business 
Climate 

Rank 
State Business Climate 

Rank 

North Carolina 3T Oklahoma 25 

Virginia 8 Alabama 26 
Kentucky 13T Georgia 27 
Missouri 15T Maryland 29 
South Carolina 19T Mississippi 30T 
Tennessee 19T Florida 35 
Arkansas 22T West Virginia 41 
Texas 24 Louisiana 42 

 

 

MANUFACTURING COMPETITIVENESS INDEX

BUSINESS 
CLIMATE Manufacturing 

Industry 
Health 
Scorecard 
(Conexus 
Indiana) 2019

 top 
marginal 
corporate 
tax rate 
2019

Legal 
Climate 
Rankings 
(2019)

Air 
Quality -
Average 
Exposure 
to PM2.5 
(2017)

Workers 
Comp 
insurance 
premium per 
$100/payroll 
2018

State and Local 
Tax Costs for 
Capital- 
Intensive 
Manufacturing 
2014

State and Local 
Tax Costs for 
Labor- 
Intensive 
Manufacturing 
2014

Value of 
$100 
(2019)

Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions 
Per Capita 
(Metric Tons of 
CO2) 2017

AVERAGE 
RANKING

STATE 
RANK

Alabama 8 24 42 40 22 19 23 3 36 24.1 26
Alaska 47 45 5 22 47 32 36 41 46 35.7 48
Arizona 20 10 17 48 11 10 7 26 17 18.4 6
Arkansas 20 24 30 16 3 44 39 2 35 23.7 22
California 16 43 48 50 49 44 43 48 3 38.2 50
Colorado 38 9 21 10 16 41 32 40 25 25.8 30
Connecticut 16 33 3 27 44 14 12 45 6 22.2 13
Delaware 38 42 1 41 46 19 26 37 21 30.1 44
Florida 38 15 46 16 30 29 21 36 12 27.0 35
Georgia 32 16 41 41 45 9 3 20 20 25.2 27
Hawaii 47 23 15 6 38 34 49 50 19 31.2 45
Idaho 8 30 9 10 30 36 36 21 11 21.2 11
Illinois 16 46 50 47 29 38 48 33 26 37.0 49
Indiana 1 16 31 44 2 50 45 11 44 27.1 36
Iowa 1 50 23 20 21 1 16 11 40 20.3 9
Kansas 6 31 32 14 6 29 40 13 33 22.7 17
Kentucky 1 12 40 35 18 24 22 5 43 22.2 13
Louisiana 20 38 49 33 41 15 9 14 47 29.6 42
Maine 32 44 2 9 32 48 44 32 15 28.7 39
Maryland 38 40 27 36 12 24 4 46 2 25.4 29
Massachusetts 20 38 28 8 13 36 45 44 4 26.2 33
Michigan 1 19 33 36 14 15 9 21 24 19.1 7
Minnesota 14 47 20 16 23 2 17 29 27 21.7 12
Mississippi 6 12 47 25 20 49 35 1 37 25.8 30
Missouri 20 22 44 31 24 12 6 9 34 22.4 15
Montana 44 29 7 12 38 39 28 24 45 29.6 43
Nebraska 32 36 8 16 25 10 5 10 41 20.3 9
Nevada 47 1 29 45 8 13 14 30 18 22.8 18
New Hampshire 8 35 18 2 25 33 38 42 9 23.3 21
New Jersey 36 49 43 36 48 7 23 47 14 33.7 47
New Mexico 47 18 22 6 17 27 30 23 38 25.3 28
New York 44 24 36 15 50 6 17 49 1 26.9 34
North Carolina 16 7 16 22 32 17 19 18 13 17.8 3
North Dakota 38 8 6 1 1 18 25 14 49 17.8 3
Ohio 8 1 35 46 15 8 13 7 31 18.2 5
Oklahoma 20 19 14 31 27 29 29 8 39 24.0 25
Oregon 14 34 25 27 6 35 33 35 4 23.7 22
Pennsylvania 20 48 39 48 34 4 11 31 29 29.3 40
Rhode Island 38 31 24 25 43 39 50 34 8 32.4 46
South Carolina 1 12 37 22 37 42 20 16 22 23.2 19
South Dakota 20 1 10 5 28 4 7 6 28 12.1 1
Tennessee 8 24 34 27 19 28 30 16 23 23.2 19
Texas 20 1 38 41 9 23 14 27 41 23.8 24
Utah 20 11 19 36 5 26 26 27 32 22.4 15
Vermont 20 41 11 4 42 47 41 39 6 27.9 38
Virginia 44 19 12 20 10 19 1 38 16 19.9 8
Washington 32 1 26 33 35 22 33 43 10 26.1 32
West Virginia 20 24 45 30 4 43 47 4 48 29.4 41
Wisconsin 8 37 13 12 40 46 42 19 30 27.4 37
Wyoming 36 1 4 2 35 3 2 25 50 17.6 2



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Workforce Index 

The availability of a skilled labor force is consistently ranked in the top five factors impacting site 
selection by Area Development magazine. In 2019, it moved up in the rankings to #1, ahead of access to 
highways and labor costs. Today, manufacturing business leaders often express concern about 
difficulties finding skilled employees such as CNC machinists and other middle-skilled credentialed 
workers. As manufacturing becomes more advanced and computer-based, the importance of STEM 
education rises for the manufacturing workforce. The Workforce Index measures education, health of 
the population, creative class population, and manufacturing productivity. For 2019 the Board included 
Right-to-Work as a positive measurement.  The Workforce Index consisted of the following sixteen 
metrics. 

Workforce Index Metrics  

 Right-to-Work State 2019 
 Percentage of Population with Adult Obesity 2018  
 Persons age 18 to 24 not attending school, not working, and no degree beyond high school 2017 
 High School Graduation Rate for all students 2016-17 
 Labor Force Participation Rate 2018 
 Manufacturing Output Per Manufacturing Employee 2018 
 Change in Manufacturing Output Per Manufacturing Employee 2013-2018 
 Age 25-44 Population Growth 2012-2017 
 Completed Tech & STEM Education Programs Per 1,000 Enrolled Students 2017 
 Percent Change in Tech & STEM Education Program Completions 2013-2018 
 Average 8th Grade Reading Score 2017 
 Average 8th Grade Math Score 2017 
 Veteran Unemployment Rate 2018 
 Veteran % share of total population 2018 
 Total number of sub-baccalaureate occupational credentials in manufacturing 2013 (this metric 

has not been updated as new data is not available) 
 Sub-baccalaureate occupational credentials in manufacturing as percent of total credentials 

2013 (this metric has not been updated as new data is not available) 

Workforce Index Performance 

Virginia’s workforce competitiveness continues to be good and Virginia dropped from 9th ranked in 2018 
to 14th ranked in 2019, behind only Maryland among Southern states.  In the individual metrics, Virginia 
improved in the categories of Persons Age 28-24 not attending school or working; 4-year High School 
Graduation Rate; and Labor Force Participation Rate while in the category of Manufacturing Output per 
Manufacturing Employee the state fell  from 12th in 2018 to 29th in 2019, and in Percent Change in Tech 
& STEM Education Completions Virginia moved from 36th  to 45th. A new metric was added: Right-to-
Work State. All of the 27 states that are Right-to-Work States were ranked equally at #1 and the 
remaining states were equally ranked at 28th. 
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Southern States Workforce Index Performance 

State Workforce 
Rank State Workforce 

Rank 
Maryland 8T Oklahoma 34 
Virginia 14 Tennessee 39 
North Carolina 18 Arkansas 40 
Kentucky 19 Louisiana 42 
Texas 20T Alabama 46 
Georgia 25T West Virginia 47 
Missouri 30 South Carolina 48 
Florida 32 Mississippi 49 

 

 

MANUFACTURING COMPETITIVENESS INDEX

WORKFORCE 

Right-to-
Work State 
(2019)

Percentage 
of 
Population 
With Adult 
Obesity 
(2018)

Persons 
age 18 to 24 
not 
attending 
school, not 
working, 
and no 
degree 
beyond 
high school 
2017

4 year High 
School 
Graduation 
Rate  2016-
17

Labor Force 
Participation 
Rate (2018)

Manufacturing 
Output Per 
Manufacturing 
Employee 
(2018)

Change in 
Manufacturing 
Output Per 
Manufacturing 
Employee 
(2013-2018)

Age 25-44 
Population 
Growth 
(2012-
2017)

Completed 
Tech & 
STEM 
Education 
Programs 
Per 1,000 
Enrolled 
Students 
(2017)

Percent 
Change in 
Tech & STEM 
Education 
Program 
Completions 
(2013-2018)

Average 8th 
Grade 
Reading 
Score (2017)

Average 8th 
Grade Math 
Score (2017)

Veteran 
Unemploym
ent Rate 
2018

Veteran % 
share of 
total 
population 
2018

total number 
of sub-
baccalaureate 
occupational 
credentials in 
manufacturing 
2013

sub-
baccalaureate 
occupational 
credentials in 
manufacturing 
as % of total 
credentials 
2013

AVERAGE 
RANKING

STATE 
RANK

Alabama 1 45 44 7 48 42 39 40 20 15 46 49 33 16 27 22 30.9 46
Alaska 28 15 42 46 15 45 15 11 34 44 46 38 16 1 45 29 29.4 43
Arizona 1 15 34 48 36 19 28 12 31 49 34 24 26 10 9 24 25.0 30
Arkansas 1 48 44 14 46 50 36 29 31 8 41 45 4 25 24 14 28.8 40
California 28 5 21 34 31 5 13 14 45 17 34 38 44 48 1 35 25.8 35
Colorado 28 1 6 45 3 26 34 2 14 21 8 15 8 19 14 12 16.0 2
Connecticut 28 7 14 15 14 9 18 49 26 19 4 21 33 44 19 4 20.3 10
Delaware 28 33 34 19 30 2 2 18 2 1 34 36 46 14 49 50 24.9 29
Florida 1 24 27 38 42 30 8 4 38 41 20 34 32 18 4 41 25.1 32
Georgia 1 30 38 41 26 39 42 26 16 9 26 30 20 30 5 8 24.2 25
Hawaii 28 2 21 34 35 16 1 14 50 45 39 38 29 6 47 36 27.6 37
Idaho 1 12 34 43 21 35 14 10 49 21 8 21 38 7 40 33 24.2 25
Illinois 28 27 27 18 19 14 40 48 23 32 20 24 20 45 3 15 25.2 33
Indiana 1 35 27 30 17 22 47 35 7 34 6 8 20 34 23 36 23.9 24
Iowa 1 44 6 1 6 28 20 24 24 37 17 15 13 30 28 31 20.3 10
Kansas 1 38 10 24 12 32 33 38 40 30 20 20 7 22 26 21 23.4 22
Kentucky 1 46 42 4 43 18 26 42 5 5 30 36 29 30 10 3 23.1 19
Louisiana 1 47 48 47 44 3 48 19 8 11 48 50 49 38 6 2 29.3 42
Maine 28 22 14 19 25 49 19 44 48 25 11 21 1 5 39 20 24.4 27
Maryland 28 25 21 16 11 4 10 29 1 18 20 30 11 28 33 32 19.8 8
Massachusetts 28 3 2 12 10 8 22 23 6 13 1 1 25 47 35 42 17.4 4
Michigan 1 31 27 42 36 27 31 37 9 37 30 33 42 39 18 42 30.1 45
Minnesota 28 20 2 34 1 31 29 26 44 43 11 2 20 39 17 27 23.4 22
Mississippi 1 49 47 33 49 47 21 41 34 3 49 47 41 36 31 15 34.0 49
Missouri 28 42 21 12 24 25 23 29 27 31 26 30 11 25 21 25 25.0 30
Montana 28 6 14 27 28 12 6 8 17 24 20 15 26 4 46 17 18.6 5
Nebraska 1 35 6 8 3 36 37 21 47 41 11 8 4 25 36 6 20.3 10
Nevada 1 15 44 40 27 37 32 9 30 4 41 42 38 10 44 49 28.9 41
New Hampshire 28 18 4 10 6 23 5 43 46 2 2 3 16 16 48 47 19.8 8
New Jersey 28 3 14 2 31 6 17 45 15 14 2 4 44 49 29 45 21.8 17
New Mexico 28 29 48 50 47 15 38 38 39 48 49 48 48 9 34 27 37.2 50
New York 28 9 21 39 40 11 9 33 18 15 33 24 35 49 13 46 26.4 36
North Carolina 1 31 27 22 38 21 49 26 12 11 34 24 13 21 11 19 22.5 18
North Dakota 1 43 1 17 2 40 25 1 20 37 30 8 2 28 43 13 19.4 6
Ohio 28 34 21 28 31 20 30 35 13 21 17 8 19 33 12 40 24.4 27
Oklahoma 1 40 38 37 38 38 27 14 9 35 39 42 13 10 16 7 25.3 34
Oregon 28 19 27 49 34 24 50 7 36 27 26 24 29 19 37 39 29.7 44
Pennsylvania 28 25 27 22 29 17 16 34 4 27 8 15 37 35 7 9 21.3 15
Rhode Island 28 10 6 29 19 43 7 24 37 35 26 38 50 43 38 11 27.8 38
South Carolina 1 37 34 32 45 44 43 13 41 32 41 42 42 8 25 23 31.4 48
South Dakota 1 20 14 31 5 48 11 17 11 27 20 15 10 22 42 17 19.4 6
Tennessee 1 38 38 3 41 33 35 21 42 47 38 34 38 22 15 10 28.5 39
Texas 1 40 38 4 22 7 45 4 29 10 41 24 35 39 2 30 23.2 20
Utah 1 11 10 26 8 34 44 4 33 6 11 14 20 46 32 26 20.4 13
Vermont 28 8 4 8 12 41 4 47 22 19 4 8 26 42 50 48 23.2 20
Virginia 1 22 10 19 15 29 46 32 28 45 17 5 8 2 22 36 21.1 14
Washington 28 13 14 44 23 10 41 3 3 26 6 6 16 13 8 5 16.2 3
West Virginia 1 49 48 6 50 13 12 49 25 7 45 46 46 14 41 44 31.0 47
Wisconsin 1 28 10 11 9 46 24 46 18 37 11 8 4 36 20 34 21.4 16
Wyoming 1 14 14 25 18 1 3 20 42 50 11 6 2 2 30 1 15.0 1
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Infrastructure Index 

Highway accessibility was ranked as the number three factor for site selection by Area Development in 
2019 and is always among the top 10 factors. Over 87 percent of managers considered highway 
accessibility as very important or important when deciding on a new facility, expansion, or relocation. 
Infrastructure is still tremendously significant for manufacturing firms because of the need to move raw 
materials in and products out to major markets. The growing trend of large industrial parks (with large 
distribution centers) and consumer demand for on-time, quick delivery also drives the call for improved 
infrastructure. The American Society of Civil Engineers currently gives the nation a grade of D+ when it 
comes to infrastructure, estimating a needed investment of $3.6 trillion by 2020. These findings show 
that for economic development, infrastructure is a quantity as well as a quality issue. Improving aging 
infrastructure not only supports current industry but is also seen as an investment to spur future 
growth. Broadband was added and is now often a key infrastructure measure. The Infrastructure Index 
consisted of the following nine metrics. 

Infrastructure Index Metrics  

 Total State Spending on Transportation Per Capita FY2018 
 Average Retail Electricity Price for Industrial Customers, Cents Per KwH Aug 2019 
 Percent of bridges in poor condition 2018 
 Percentage growth in Freight Shipments tons (thousands) 2013-2017 
 Percentage growth in Freight Shipments $$ (millions) 2013-2017 
 Miles of Interstate highways per 10,000 population 2018 
 Average Retail Natural Gas Price for Industrial Customers, $ per thousand cubic feet Aug 2019 
 State Transportation Expenditures as Percent of Total Expenditures FY2018 
 Percentage of Population Without 25 Mbps/3 Mbps Broadband Access - All Areas Dec 2017 

Infrastructure Index Performance 

Infrastructure is another critical area for manufacturers, and Virginia rose in the rankings from 15th to 9th 
(tied with Kansas) and is now the fourth highest ranked Southern state after Texas, Kentucky and 
Florida. In the individual metrics, Virginia improved in the category of Total State Spending on 
Transportation per Capita from 10th to 8th; State Spending on Transportation as Percent of Total 
Spending from 6th to 2nd; Average Price of Electricity for Industrial Customers from 24th to 21st; Percent 
of Bridges in Poor Condition from 16th to 11th; while the Percent Growth in Freight Shipment Value 
ranking dropped from 28th in 2018 to 33rd in 2019; and Percent of Population Without Broadband 
dropped from 25th to 27th.   

Southern States Infrastructure Index Performance 

State Infrastructure 
Rank State Infrastructure 

Rank 
Texas 2 West Virginia 20 
Kentucky 6 Oklahoma 22 
Florida 8 South Carolina 25 
Virginia 9T Louisiana 26 
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Alabama 12 North Carolina 32 
Maryland 13T Mississippi 45 
Georgia 17 Arkansas 46 
Tennessee 18T Missouri 48 
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INFRASTRUCTURE

Total 
State 
Spending 
on 
Transport
ation Per 
Capita 
(FY2018)

Average 
Retail 
Electricity 
Price for 
Industrial 
Customers, 
Cents Per 
KwH (Aug 
2019)

%  bridges in 
poor 
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(2018)

% growth in 
Freight 
Shipments 
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(thousands) 
2013-2017
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Freight 
Shipments 
$$ 
(millions) 
2013-2017

Miles of 
Interstate 
highways 
per 10,000 
people 
(2018)

Average 
Retail 
Natural 
Gas Price 
for 
Industrial 
Customers, 
$ per 
thousand 
cubic feet 
(Aug 2019)

State 
Transportation 
Expenditures as 
% of Total 
Expenditures 
(FY2018)

Percentage of 
Population 
Without 25 
Mbps/3 Mbps 
Broadband 
Access - All 
Areas (Dec 
2017)

AVERAGE 
RANKING

STATE 
RANK

Alabama 43 13 9 20 8 19 7 40 42 22.3 12
Alaska 1 49 38 43 2 2 27 1 47 23.3 13
Arizona 29 23 3 32 40 30 14 28 40 26.6 33
Arkansas 21 17 11 46 38 16 40 37 50 30.7 46
California 32 48 23 14 10 47 44 44 9 30.1 42
Colorado 47 30 18 23 14 27 33 46 21 28.8 39
Connecticut 5 45 26 40 48 41 36 15 1 28.6 38
Delaware 3 27 8 2 43 49 49 19 6 22.9 14
Florida 27 31 6 6 37 45 31 4 10 21.9 8
Georgia 42 24 7 13 17 39 17 30 24 23.7 17
Hawaii 2 50 22 39 30 50 50 7 11 29.0 40
Idaho 39 20 23 29 44 8 11 18 43 26.1 30
Illinois 38 18 31 22 9 26 34 31 15 24.9 23
Indiana 45 25 21 34 21 22 37 40 33 30.9 47
Iowa 19 40 48 4 13 14 18 26 32 23.8 18
Kansas 41 26 16 7 23 10 6 39 30 22.0 9
Kentucky 24 3 25 37 5 23 8 32 31 20.9 6
Louisiana 48 1 44 14 11 20 5 48 38 25.4 26
Maine 23 41 45 36 35 12 32 22 19 29.4 41
Maryland 7 33 15 9 35 44 47 7 6 22.6 13
Massachusetts 12 46 36 28 31 43 46 25 5 30.2 44
Michigan 36 28 41 3 3 36 41 28 26 26.9 34
Minnesota 14 36 14 14 20 30 16 19 13 19.6 4
Mississippi 28 9 37 44 42 13 20 34 48 30.6 45
Missouri 44 32 33 41 34 18 28 26 37 32.6 48
Montana 14 4 28 49 49 3 25 14 41 25.2 24
Nebraska 26 35 34 27 21 15 13 24 39 26.0 29
Nevada 34 38 2 42 14 21 42 16 22 25.7 28
New Hampshire 36 44 35 12 11 29 38 16 15 26.2 31
New Jersey 9 42 29 21 28 48 43 9 1 25.6 27
New Mexico 16 5 20 30 4 7 9 32 45 18.7 3
New York 25 7 39 31 46 42 35 43 3 30.1 42
North Carolina 18 19 40 34 41 37 30 6 13 26.4 32
North Dakota 5 39 42 1 1 5 2 11 20 14.0 1
Ohio 49 12 19 19 27 34 26 47 15 27.6 35
Oklahoma 40 2 43 18 14 17 1 37 49 24.6 22
Oregon 32 14 16 8 6 25 24 48 25 22.0 9
Pennsylvania 11 16 46 11 31 33 45 12 12 24.1 21
Rhode Island 20 47 50 17 25 46 48 40 4 33.0 49
South Carolina 31 11 31 33 29 27 14 19 33 25.3 25
South Dakota 13 37 47 47 38 4 29 2 36 28.1 37
Tennessee 46 8 9 25 19 24 10 45 28 23.8 18
Texas 30 29 1 5 7 38 3 9 22 16.0 2
Utah 17 14 4 45 45 11 21 5 18 20.0 5
Vermont 4 43 5 24 50 6 12 13 35 21.3 7
Virginia 8 21 11 38 33 35 23 2 27 22.0 9
Washington 35 6 11 10 24 40 39 34 8 23.0 15
West Virginia 10 10 49 48 18 9 4 23 44 23.9 20
Wisconsin 22 34 27 25 25 32 22 36 28 27.9 36
Wyoming 50 22 30 50 47 1 19 50 46 35.0 50
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Innovation Index 

The Innovation Index measures states’ performance in university technology transfer, patent 
development, research & development funding, and venture capital funding. Innovation and research 
help generate new manufacturing companies and products. Innovation is a tool that grows 
manufacturing from within a region, as businesses are more likely to start and remain close to their 
original research connection. An area known for innovation and a talented technological workforce is 
more likely to attract businesses looking to relocate. It is also more likely to draw top talent in the 
creative class. The Innovation Index consisted of the following seven metrics. 

Innovation Index Metrics  

 Technology Licenses and Options Executed from Universities 2017 
 Patents Issued 2010-2017 
 Total Technology Industry Employment Growth 2013-2018 
 Total R&D percent of GDP 2016 
 Business Performed R&D - Percent of Private Industry Output 2016 
 Average Venture Capital Funding Per $1 Million of GDP 2013-2018 
 Average Annual Number of New Entrepreneurs per 100,000 people 2018, replacing Start-Up 

Firms per 1,000 Firms 2016 (this metric has not been updated as new data is not available) 

Innovation Index Performance 

Virginia dropped in the Innovation Index from 23rd in 2018 to 31st in 2019, remaining in the middle of the 
Southern states. In the individual metrics, Virginia has remained stable, with the rankings staying the 
same or shifting by one position, except for Technology Industry Employment Growth which improved 
from 36th in 2018 to 30th in 2019. Technology Licenses and Options which dropped from 20th in 2018 to 
23rd in 2019; Total R&D as Percent of GDP from 20th to 26th; Business Performed R&D as Percent of 
Private Output from 28th to 30th. In the future, a state economic development focus on attracting and 
growing technology companies and advanced industry manufacturing firms is likely to provide 
improvements in this index. 

Southern States Innovation Index Performance 

State Innovation 
Rank State Innovation 

Rank 
North Carolina 4 South Carolina 33 
Florida 8 Alabama 37 
Maryland 10 Oklahoma 40 
Texas 12 Kentucky 43 
Georgia 15 Mississippi 45 
Missouri  18 Louisiana 46 
Tennessee 29 Arkansas 47 
Virginia 31 West Virginia 50 
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INNOVATION Technology 
Licenses 
and Options 
Executed 
from 
Universities 
(2017)

Patents 
Issued 
(2010-
2017)

Total 
Technology 
Industry 
Employment 
Growth (2013-
2018)

Total 
R&D % of 
GDP 
(2016)

Business 
Performed 
R&D - % of 
Private 
Industry 
Output 
(2016)

Average 
Venture 
Capital 
Funding 
Per $1 
Million 
of GDP 
(2013-
2018)

Average 
Annual 
Number 
of New 
Entrepre
neurs per 
100,000 
people 
(2018)

AVERAGE 
RANKING

STATE 
RANK

Alabama 26                  35            29 17 29 44 42 31.7 37
Alaska 47                  50            50 44 49 42 7 41.3 49
Arizona 16                  15            14 14 12 17 13 14.4 7
Arkansas 37                  43            47 44 42 38 25 39.4 47
California 1                    1               12 4 1 1 2 3.1 1
Colorado 22                  14            18 23 25 6 13 17.3 14
Connecticut 41                  18            37 7 6 8 45 23.1 22
Delaware 42                  37            43 10 7 16 38 27.6 28
Florida 6                    10            6 35 32 20 1 15.7 8
Georgia 10                  16            19 31 27 14 5 17.4 15
Hawaii 40                  45            35 44 48 45 22 39.9 48
Idaho 32                  26            4 9 9 30 10 17.1 13
Illinois 18                  8               27 21 16 10 36 19.4 19
Indiana 14                  21            28 21 16 35 42 25.3 26
Iowa 20                  27            31 23 20 41 28 27.1 27
Kansas 28                  28            45 28 23 33 29 30.6 35
Kentucky 34                  32            42 40 35 39 34 36.6 43
Louisiana 31                  38            43 50 49 48 15 39.1 46
Maine not reported 41            9 40 35 24 21 28.3 30
Maryland 11                  22            23 2 16 9 29 16.0 10
Massachusetts 2                    4               10 3 2 2 38 8.7 3
Michigan 12                  7               15 6 4 32 38 16.3 11
Minnesota 9                    6               26 17 13 12 45 18.3 17
Mississippi 39                  42            39 38 46 50 17 38.7 45
Missouri 18                  24            17 19 13 26 17 19.1 18
Montana 34                  44            36 38 42 23 8 32.1 38
Nebraska 30                  40            22 35 35 37 22 31.6 36
Nevada 38                  31            1 49 42 28 15 29.1 32
New Hampshire 17                  30            5 11 9 11 41 17.7 16
New Jersey 25                  9               33 11 8 25 25 19.4 19
New Mexico 29                  36            34 1 33 31 5 24.1 23
New York 5                    3               13 29 27 3 17 13.9 6
North Carolina 8                    13            3 14 15 7 29 12.7 4
North Dakota 48                  46            46 35 35 47 11 38.3 44
Ohio 15                  12            24 26 23 29 45 24.9 24
Oklahoma 36                  33            40 40 40 46 9 34.9 40
Oregon 13                  17            11 8 5 13 29 13.7 5
Pennsylvania 3                    11            25 19 16 15 48 19.6 21
Rhode Island 44                  39            38 13 22 21 50 32.4 39
South Carolina 32                  29            6 34 33 40 34 29.7 33
South Dakota 43                  48            15 44 42 43 17 36.0 42
Tennessee 21                  25            21 31 40 27 29 27.7 29
Texas 7                    2               32 29 26 18 4 16.9 12
Utah 26                  23            8 14 11 4 25 15.9 9
Vermont 45                  34            41 33 30 19 11 30.4 34
Virginia 23                  20            30 26 30 22 49 28.6 31
Washington 4                    5               2 5 2 5 22 6.4 2
West Virginia 46                  47            48 44 46 49 42 46.0 50
Wisconsin 24                  19            20 23 20 34 36 25.1 25
Wyoming not reported 49            49 40 35 36 2 35.2 41
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Manufacturing Economic Strength  

Finally, the Economic Strength Index evaluates the existing presence of the manufacturing sector within 
each state and evaluates indicators of overall economic performance. Existing industry in a state can 
create a clustering effect and attract further manufacturing to the area. Clusters have been known to 
attract other prospective businesses because of the benefit of higher concentrations of skilled 
employees and regional suppliers. A strongly performing overall economy beyond manufacturing is 
important for prospective companies as growth inspires innovation, talent movement, and investment. 
For 2019 two new metrics were added to reflect manufacturing’s impact on private sector gross state 
product. The Economic Strength Index consisted of the following twelve metrics. 

Manufacturing Economic Strength Index Metrics  

 Manufacturing's Share of Gross State Product 2018 
 Change in Manufacturing's Share of Gross State Product 2013 -2018  
 NEW - Manufacturing's Share of PRIVATE Gross State Product 2018 
 NEW - Change in Manufacturing's Share of PRIVATE Gross State Product 2013 -2018 
 Growth in Manufacturing GDP 2013 - 2018 
 Total Manufacturing Employment 2018 
 Manufacturing Employment as percent of Total Employment 2018 
 Change in Real GDP per Capita 2013-2018 
 Change in Real Personal Income per Capita 2013-2018 
 Change in Real GDP chained 2009 dollars 2013-2018 
 Exports of Manufactured Goods percent change 2017 - 2018 
 Total Exports of Goods Per Capita 2018 
 Manufacturing establishments total capital expenditures ($millions) 2016 
 Manufacturing establishments total capital expenditures per manufacturing employee 2016 

Economic Strength Results 

Virginia improved its position from 46th in 2018 to 37th (tied with North Dakota) in the 2019 economic 
strength index. In the individual metrics, Virginia remained stable in five categories and improved in 
seven categories: Five Year Change in Manufacturing’s Share of GSP (from 35th  in 2018 to 29th in 2019); 
Five Year Change in Manufacturing GDP (from 43rd to 34th); Five Year Change in Real GDP per Capita 
(from 45th to 35th); Five Year Change in Real Personal Income per Capita (from 37th in 2018 to 33rd in 
2019);  Five Year Change in Real GDP (from 38th in 2018 to 33rd in 2019); One Year Change in Export of 
Manufactured Goods (from 39th in 2018 to 12th in 2019); and in Total Exports per Capita (from 43rd in 
2018 to 41st in 2019). In the two new metrics Virginia ranked 34th in Manufacturing’s Share of Private 
Gross State Product and 35th in Five Year Change in Manufacturing’s Share of Private Gross State 
Product. 

State Economic Strength 
Rank State Economic Strength 

Rank 
South Carolina 1 Kentucky  23 
Georgia 7T North Carolina 25 
Tennessee 10 Alabama 26 
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Louisiana 13 Maryland 30 
Texas 17 Missouri 33T 
Florida 18 Oklahoma  36 
Arkansas 19 Virginia 37T 
Mississippi 22 West Virginia 46 
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expenditu
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AVERAGE 
RANKING

STATE 
RANK

Alabama 8 35 7 37 41 17 5 35 38 39 47 21 14 10 25.3 26
Alaska 49 5 48 4 8 49 45 49 46 50 49 7 49 13 33.6 48
Arizona 37 7 35 5 3 25 39 27 17 9 15 35 29 26 22.1 15
Arkansas 13 5 15 22 25 27 7 43 26 42 5 42 28 22 23.0 19
California 28 35 25 22 10 1 31 1 1 3 27 20 2 42 17.7 4
Colorado 40 37 40 27 27 29 41 4 9 5 34 49 32 36 29.3 35
Connecticut 24 45 26 46 50 28 22 45 22 47 6 13 33 45 32.3 45
Delaware 41 29 41 10 20 45 40 38 32 29 7 12 41 6 27.9 31
Florida 45 14 45 13 2 12 43 17 11 6 26 36 15 35 22.9 18
Georgia 26 21 27 27 9 11 25 5 8 8 18 31 13 28 18.4 7
Hawaii 50 24 50 18 18 48 50 13 10 24 50 50 50 46 35.8 50
Idaho 20 7 22 22 5 37 24 18 16 7 39 39 34 5 21.1 14
Illinois 19 40 18 32 43 5 19 22 21 36 28 11 8 27 23.5 21
Indiana 1 40 1 42 32 7 1 30 28 30 23 8 7 20 19.3 9
Iowa 4 11 9 42 15 23 4 22 41 22 22 17 17 9 18.4 7
Kansas 11 1 12 1 1 26 11 14 47 27 29 25 27 18 17.9 5
Kentucky 6 37 3 44 44 18 6 40 36 40 32 5 16 11 24.1 23
Louisiana 2 26 2 8 46 32 32 44 45 44 4 1 4 1 20.8 13
Maine 31 29 31 29 31 39 28 19 14 28 37 43 44 47 32.1 43
Maryland 43 18 42 13 12 34 46 14 24 19 3 44 35 33 27.1 30
Massachusetts 34 43 33 32 36 21 34 6 7 13 42 27 25 44 28.4 32
Michigan 3 26 4 39 15 4 3 7 12 16 45 9 5 25 15.2 2
Minnesota 16 26 16 16 23 14 13 24 23 17 14 24 19 37 20.1 11
Mississippi 12 3 8 3 20 30 8 42 48 44 24 30 30 32 23.9 22
Missouri 18 21 19 35 35 16 21 40 33 40 33 37 21 38 29.1 33
Montana 41 18 39 5 28 47 43 46 33 35 16 47 38 3 31.4 42
Nebraska 23 42 27 47 47 35 17 37 43 32 11 23 36 29 32.1 43
Nevada 46 18 46 19 6 38 47 34 6 10 48 32 42 40 30.9 41
New Hampshire 22 14 20 9 13 36 15 16 19 18 41 28 39 50 24.3 24
New Jersey 38 14 38 16 17 20 37 29 14 34 40 26 22 31 26.9 29
New Mexico 48 12 46 10 14 44 49 21 30 31 30 45 40 7 30.5 40
New York 47 34 48 26 36 10 42 8 5 23 16 22 10 30 25.5 28
North Carolina 7 48 6 48 40 9 14 28 19 15 35 34 9 34 24.7 25
North Dakota 39 3 43 10 25 46 37 50 50 49 1 3 47 19 30.1 37
Ohio 10 29 11 25 24 3 8 11 30 21 19 16 3 12 15.9 3
Oklahoma 32 14 36 41 42 31 30 25 49 25 13 48 26 8 30.0 36
Oregon 15 43 13 29 10 24 17 3 3 2 44 10 23 17 18.1 6
Pennsylvania 21 29 24 32 30 6 19 10 17 20 19 33 6 21 20.5 12
Rhode Island 36 12 37 13 22 42 28 39 29 43 43 40 46 48 34.1 49
South Carolina 9 7 9 19 7 19 11 25 13 12 21 6 18 15 13.6 1
South Dakota 29 2 31 2 4 41 16 47 40 38 25 46 45 41 29.1 33
Tennessee 14 37 14 38 18 13 10 12 27 14 38 14 11 14 19.6 10
Texas 17 49 17 49 49 2 32 32 42 11 9 2 1 4 22.6 17
Utah 27 47 20 39 29 33 26 9 4 4 2 18 31 24 22.4 16
Vermont 33 24 30 19 33 43 22 30 37 37 10 15 48 43 30.3 39
Virginia 35 29 34 35 34 22 36 35 33 33 12 41 20 23 30.1 37
Washington 24 50 23 50 48 15 27 2 2 1 36 4 24 49 25.4 27
West Virginia 30 21 29 29 45 40 35 33 38 46 46 19 37 16 33.1 46
Wisconsin 4 45 4 44 38 8 2 19 24 26 31 29 12 39 23.2 20
Wyoming 44 7 44 5 38 50 48 47 44 48 8 38 43 2 33.3 47
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Overall Manufacturing Competitiveness Index All States 

In addition to each of the five indexes a composite index was create using all of the 52 data 
points. As the chart below shows, Virginia is ranked as the 15th most competitive state in overall 
manufacturing competitiveness, a drop from its 8th overall ranking in 2018. Close neighbors 
North Carolina and Maryland also scored high finishing #6 and #9. The chart below provides a 
quick visual reference with states ranked among the 15-best coded in green and states scoring 
in the bottom 15 coded red.  
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2019 OVERALL STATE RANKINGS
BUSINESS 
CLIMATE WORKFORCE 

INFRA- 
STRUCTURE INNOVATION 

ECONOMIC 
STRENGTH  

 TOTAL 
RANKINGS

AVERAGE 
RANK

1 Utah 15T 13 5 9 16 58 11.6
2 Minnesota 12 22T 4 17 11 66 13.2
3 Iowa 9T 10T 18T 27 7T 71 14.2
4 Texas 24 20T 2 12 17 75 15.0
5 Washington 32 3 16 2 27 80 16.0
6 North Carolina 3T 18 32 4 25 83 16.6
7 Oregon 22T 44 9T 5 6 86 17.2
8 Kansas 17 22T 9T 35 5 88 17.6
9 Maryland 29 8T 13T 10 30 90 18.0

10T Georgia 27 25T 17 15 7T 91 18.2
10T Arizona 6 30T 33 7 15 91 18.2
10T North Dakota 3T 6T 1 44 37T 91 18.2

13 Idaho 11 25T 30 13 14 93 18.6
14 Ohio 5 27T 35 24 3 94 18.8

15T Michigan 7 45 34 11 2 99 19.8
15T Virginia 8 14 9T 31 37T 99 19.8

17 New Hampshire 21 8T 31 16 24 100 20.0
18 Florida 35 32 8 8 18 101 20.2
19 Kentucky 13T 19 6 43 23 104 20.8
20 Pennsylvania 40 15 21 21 12 109 21.8
21 Tennessee 19T 39 18T 29 10 115 23.0
22 Massachusetts 33 4 44 3 32 116 23.2
23 South Dakota 1 6T 37 42 33T 119 23.8
24 Colorado 30T 2 39 14 35 120 24.0
25 South Carolina 19T 48 25 33 1 126 25.2
26 Nebraska 9T 10T 29 36 43T 127 25.4
27 Connecticut 13T 10T 38 22 45 128 25.6
28 California 50 35 42T 1 4 132 26.4
29 Wisconsin 37 16 36 25 20 134 26.8
30 Vermont 38 20T 7 34 39 138 27.6
31 New Jersey 47 17 27 19T 29 139 27.8
32 Wyoming 2 1 50 41 47 141 28.2
33 Indiana 36 24 47 26 9 142 28.4

34T Missouri 15T 30T 48 18 33T 144 28.8
34T New Mexico 28 50 3 23 40 144 28.8

36 Illinois 49 33 23 19T 21 145 29.0
37 New York 34 36 42T 6 28 146 29.2

38T Alabama 26 46 12 37 26 147 29.4
38T Delaware 44 29 15 28 31 147 29.4

40 Montana 43 5 24 38 42 152 30.4
41 Oklahoma 25 34 22 40 36 157 31.4
42 Nevada 18 41 28 32 41 160 32.0
43 Louisiana 42 42 26 46 13 169 33.8
44 Arkansas 22T 40 46 47 19 174 34.8
45 Maine 39 27T 41 30 43T 180 36.0
46 Mississippi 30T 49 45 45 22 191 38.2
47 Alaska 48 43 13T 49 48 201 40.2
48 West Virginia 41 47 20 50 46 204 40.8
49 Hawaii 45 37 40 48 50 220 44.0
50 Rhode Island 46 38 49 39 49 221 44.2

top 15 bottom 15
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Conclusions –  

The overall economy in Virginia has begun to rebound from the post great recession challenges 
that the state faced. From 2011 to 2016, Virginia's change in GDP per capita and real personal 
income growth were among the lowest in the country.  As the chart below shows from 2017-
2018 state GDP growth grow at 2.8 percent, still below some neighboring states, but in the 
fourth best quintile for growth. 

 

 

The fundamentals of the Virginia economy’s business climate and workforce appear to be 
positioned as one of the most competitive states, but some headwinds remain. The Federal 
government’s large and rising debt will likely limit future investment and, as home to significant 
military facilities and government contractors, will impact the state. Another concern is the 
widening gap between prosperous areas of the state and those that have yet to experience 
new growth.  

An economic development prioritization to strengthen Virginia’s manufacturing sector could 
take better advantage of the state’s skilled workers, sound infrastructure and stream of 
innovative ideas.  New manufacturing investment and jobs could also better spread prosperity 
across more of Virginia. While manufacturing jobs have declined over the past 30 years due to 
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many factors, including automation, per employee output expanded significantly. The chart 
below shows that despite fewer jobs, manufacturing GDP has risen over 50 percent in the past 
20 years.  

 

 

 
Source: US Bureau of Labor Statistics QCEW & US Bureau of Economic Analysis GDP 

This map shows that 
manufacturing job 
expansion over the 
past five years has 
been widespread 
across the state, 
bringing growth and 
prosperity to places 
that have been 
experiencing 
economic hardship. 

Manufacturing can 
be better supported 
by a strategic 
commitment to 
improve the business climate, focus on middle skill job training, increased global trade, 
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improved innovation commercialization, a cluster approach to economic development and to 
sustained private sector engagement. Virginia can be a national leader in nurturing tomorrow's 
advanced manufacturing. The foundation is strong. The Virginia Manufacturers Association is a 
ready and willing partner. 
______________________________________________________________________________
Below are the 2018 and 2017 Overall State Rankings.   

 

2018 OVERALL STATE RANKINGS
BUSINESS 
CLIMATE WORKFORCE 

INFRA- 
STRUCTURE INNOVATION 

ECONOMIC 
STRENGTH  

 TOTAL 
RANKINGS

AVERAGE 
RANK

1 Minnesota 12 8 6 12 10 48 9.6
2 Texas 20T 10 3 14 7 54 10.8
3 Utah 14 11 4 6 21T 56 11.2
4 Washington 24 4 12 2 20 62 12.4
5 Iowa 10T 14 10 33 8T 75 15.0
6 North Carolina 8 23 25 7 14 77 15.4
7 Oregon 13 36 9 4 23 85 17.0
8 Idaho 7 37 5 21 26 96 19.2
9 Virginia 5 9 15 23 46 98 19.6

10 North Dakota 10T 5 1 41 42 99 19.8
11 Michigan 4 47 40T 8 2 101 20.2
12 Kansas 16 22 11 32 21T 102 20.4

13T Arizona 6 31T 21 10 35T 103 20.6
13T Colorado 30T 3 32T 11 27 103 20.6

15 Massachusetts 25 7 45 3 25 105 21.0
16 South Dakota 1 16 6 45 38 106 21.2

17T Nebraska 9 13 16 40 29 107 21.4
17T Pennsylvania 41 15 23 20 8T 107 21.4
19T Maryland 30T 6 17 15T 41 109 21.8
19T Ohio 2 28T 49 25T 5 109 21.8

21 Indiana 34 20 34T 24 1 113 22.6
22 Tennessee 19 34 32T 27 4 116 23.2
23 Kentucky 18 27 20 39 15 119 23.8
24 Florida 29 40 24 9 18 120 24.0

25T Georgia 20T 38 37T 15T 11 121 24.2
25T New Hampshire 26 12 48 18T 17 121 24.2

27 Wyoming 3 1 27 46 45 122 24.4
28 South Carolina 15 42 30 31 6 124 24.8
29 Illinois 50 24 18T 17 16 125 25.0
30 Nevada 17 45 2 30 32 126 25.2
31 Montana 45 2 13 37 30 127 25.4
32 California 49 33 44 1 3 130 26.0
33 Connecticut 32T 18 18T 22 47 137 27.4
34 Missouri 22T 19 47 13 40 141 28.2

35T New Jersey 47 25 26 18T 28 144 28.8
35T Wisconsin 38T 17 42 28 19 144 28.8
37T Alabama 27T 44 39 35T 12 157 31.4
37T New York 35 43 43 5 31 157 31.4

39 Vermont 32T 31T 8 38 49 158 31.6
40 Arkansas 22T 46 40T 43 13 164 32.8
41 Oklahoma 38T 21 22 42 43 166 33.2
42 Delaware 43T 39 36 25T 33 176 35.2
43 New Mexico 36 48 14 29 50 177 35.4
44 Louisiana 37 41 29 48 24 179 35.8
45 Maine 42 30 28 35T 48 183 36.6
46 Mississippi 27T 50 34T 47 35T 193 38.6
47 Rhode Island 46 28T 50 34 37 195 39.0

48T Alaska 48 35 37T 49 34 203 40.6
48T Hawaii 43T 26 46 44 44 203 40.6

50 West Virginia 38T 49 31 50 39 207 41.4

top 15 bottom 15
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2017 OVERALL STATE RANKINGS
BUSINESS 
CLIMATE WORKFORCE 

INFRA- 
STRUCTURE INNOVATION 

ECONOMIC 
STRENGTH  

 TOTAL 
RANKINGS

AVERAGE 
RANK

1 Minnesota 9 8 7 15 9 48 9.6
2 Utah 10 11 17 4 21 63 12.6
3 Washington 32 4 13 2 16 67 13.4
4 Texas 34 10 1 16 8 69 13.8
5 Iowa 6 14 8 34 12 74 14.8
6 Massachusetts 17 7 39 3 17 83 16.6
7 Colorado 28 3 17 10 27 85 17.0
8 North Carolina 3 23 29 9 22 86 17.2
9 Virginia 4 9 11 25 46 95 19.0

10T Idaho 21 37 9 19 13 99 19.8
10T Connecticut 11 18 6 22 42 99 19.8

12 North Dakota 23 5 3 39 30 100 20.0
13 Michigan 2 47 46 5 1 101 20.2

14T Ohio 8 28 40 26 5 107 21.4
14T Pennsylvania 31 14 30 21 11 107 21.4
14T Maryland 18 6 22 16 45 107 21.4
17T Nebraska 4 13 21 35 36 109 21.8
17T South Dakota 1 16 2 43 47 109 21.8
19T Kentucky 24 27 13 40 6 110 22.0
19T Missouri 15 19 50 8 18 110 22.0

21 Oregon 7 35 34 7 29 112 22.4
22 Kansas 20 22 12 33 27 114 22.8

23T Illinois 50 24 16 11 14 115 23.0
23T New Hampshire 16 12 44 20 23 115 23.0

25 Georgia 13 38 35 12 19 117 23.4
26 Indiana 25 20 47 24 3 119 23.8

27T Tennessee 13 34 43 27 4 121 24.2
27T Wisconsin 38 16 26 27 14 121 24.2

29 Wyoming 18 1 22 49 39 129 25.8
30 Montana 45 2 5 41 37 130 26.0
31 California 49 33 49 1 2 134 26.8
32 Arizona 12 31 48 13 34 138 27.6
33 New York 34 43 31 5 26 139 27.8
34 Florida 33 40 24 18 25 140 28.0
35 Vermont 30 31 4 38 43 146 29.2

36T Alabama 21 44 38 36 9 148 29.6
36T Oklahoma 42 20 20 42 24 148 29.6
38T South Carolina 25 42 44 31 7 149 29.8
38T New Jersey 39 25 37 14 34 149 29.8

40 Delaware 34 39 15 22 48 158 31.6
41 Louisiana 25 41 27 47 19 159 31.8
42 Nevada 37 45 10 32 38 162 32.4
43 Maine 41 30 31 30 44 176 35.2
44 Rhode Island 43 28 40 36 33 180 36.0
45 Arkansas 29 46 33 44 32 184 36.8
46 New Mexico 44 48 19 29 49 189 37.8
47 Mississippi 40 50 25 45 30 190 38.0
48 Hawaii 48 26 42 46 41 203 40.6
49 Alaska 47 35 27 48 50 207 41.4
50 West Virginia 46 49 36 50 40 221 44.2

top 15 bottom 15



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 


	20_01_AGE_cvpdc_v.final
	Attachment-3_cvpdc-draft-minutes_21NOV19
	Attachment-4a_audit-report-robinson-farmer-cox_FY19
	Central Virginia Planning District Commission-19
	Attachment-4b_budget-to-actual_ending31DEC19
	Attachment-5a_options-for-supporting-adv-manufacturing
	Attachment-5b_background-material-on-manufacturing
	Attachment-5c_Jobs-EQ-stats-central-va
	Attachment-5d_manufacturing-indexes-virginia_2019
	Attachment-MISC_transportation-highlight


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




